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Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited is
dedicated to providing full-fledged engineering and property services,
with operations in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging,
Guangzhou, Hangzhou, Macau and Kuwait.

Riding on more than six decades of experiences and professionalism,
Paul Y. Engineering adds value to its distinguished client base and
properties by delivering integrated solutions, from concept to
completion and ongoing management, as well as components that best
match clients’ needs and expectations.
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Financial Highlights

R

Turnover

Earnings before interest
and tax

Profit attributable to

equity holders
Shares outstanding (million)

Net asset value per share (HK cents)
Earnings per share (HK cents)

® Basic

e Diluted
Dividend per share (HK cents)

e Final

e Interim

Total dividend per share

Total assets

Net current assets

Net cash

Equity attributable to
equity holders

Operating cash flow

Net cash flow

Current ratio
Net cash/equity ratio
Gearing ratio

Long term debt/equity ratio
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2009
HK$'million
BEAER

4,427.2

57.9

40.2

603

89.0

6.7
6.7

15

15

2,393.3
391.2
125.6

536.8
(32.7)
(59.0)

1.22
0.23
0.59
0.09

2008
HK$ million
BEBT

4,913.0

139.1

119.5

597

87.7

20.2
20.0

55
3.5

9.0

2,632.8
342.0
265.8

523.8
55.2
99.8

1.16
0.51
0.39
0.01

Percentage
change

THEED

-10%

-58%

-66%

+1%

+1%

-67%
-67%

-73%
-100%

-83%

-9%
+14%
-53%

+2%

+5%
-55%
+51%
+800%



Turnover (HK$'million)

EEE (8B
2007 4,359.3
2008 4,913.0

200 [ 4,427.2

Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$'million)

ERFEARGERN (5881
2007 112.6
2008 119.5
2000 N 40.2

Net asset value per share (HK cents)

BREEFE GBI
2007 74.9
2008 87.7

2000 NN 89.0

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)
BRER — &R GEW)

19.3 202

2007

2008

6.7

2009

Dividend per share (HK cents)

BRI E GBL)
9.0 9.0
2007 2008

1.5
]

2009

Dividend payout ratio

R ER St =R
47%  45%
2007 2008

22%

2009
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Professional Achievements and
Corporate Social Responsibility

BXREAEHEEESE

05/2008

Paul Y. Engineering joined PYI in donating in excess of
HK$6 million to relief work of the mass earthquake in
Sichuan Province. Paul Y. Engineering also supported “512
Artiste” by providing professional advice in construction and
project management.

RERFERREEERLBBC00EETT © AR KM
BZIRETIE - REZFERE[512BETH ] BHER -
REGEERARERTHENEXER -

06/2008

Residence Bel-Air Phase |, which featured luxury club-house and
innovative facilities, was made a finalist in Residential Category,
Quality Building Award 2008. The project had won another six

awards during the contract period.

A EE—HABESEEKNE2008 (FEEFEH) - 5E
IRESMRLEREIBNIER CANHHEESEM
7N E IR o
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07/2008

A video produced by Labour Department,

featuring the safety achievements of Shek |
Mun Public Housing Project, was broadcasted

in RoadShow. The project won the Gold Award :
in Building Site (Public Sector) category under the ]T‘
Construction

Industry Safety

Award Scheme

2007/08.

BIRENAMARER#ERE
el AREELTEE
& WESEEAFR [BA
BIBKR - ZEEREEEE
72 12T £12007/0812F 12
EHE (REEH) AR
©E o

10/2008

Paul Y. Engineering donated RMB200,000 for rebuilding a
primary school in Sichuan Province, China.
RERERBH20BARE - £ EE2— /N ERE - X
FEMHE -

02/2009

carin ny=-=

e ArE NN

Paul Y. Engineering was named

a Caring Company by the Hong

Kong Council of Social Service in

recognition of its consistent efforts

in encouraging and supporting

employees to take part in voluntary

work and donation to charitable causes, thus helping to build a
caring community.

REZEEEBL SRS T [FARMIE] FE - UK
HLEBSERFERIIFETL2HEB I - BEIFELFIK
ERE KMER—ERREROLE -



03/2009

Tin Shui Wai Public Library site was awarded Green Contractor
Award 2008 by Architectural Services Department.

RKE B E IR B ERESRE2008IRRAGEE A -

04/2009

A total of three managerial staff were elected members of
the 65th Hong Kong Construction Association Council on its
Annual General Meeting.

FREZE-—(NEERABCEERENSAFAS L B2
FZEENTLEREEEE -

i

Four security staff serving the Celestial Heights site were
appreciated by the Hong Kong Police Force (Kowloon
West Region) for their outstanding performance in fighting
against crime.

FILERBBOURZAES  BANEERREARE
REE - BEMMAEITEREITEAER

05/2009

Four construction sites of Paul Y. Engineering, consisted of
building and civil engineering projects located in various districts,
were awarded in the Considerate Contractor Site Awards 2008.
The scheme was organized by the Development Bureau.

REREAFRBERO DR L EFOERE - 582
THE PEEERTATR - &AM NRIA -

07/2009

Project Managers of Landmark East and Bel-Air No.8, Steven
Chong and Daniel Kong respectively, attained Construction
Manager of The Year Awards 2008 by Chartered Institute of
Building (Hong Kong).

REZEFASEFEREIHE  DRIENEFEE
FMEDEcH  EREBHEESE (FF) BREELRE
A 82008 °

REREEMERAT 2009FH D



Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

I am pleased to present the annual report of Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2009.

This year, our turnover was HK$4,427 million (2008: HK$4,913 miillion),
a decrease of 10% compared to the previous year. Profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$40 million (2008: HK$119 million),
a decrease of 66% year on year. Our shareholders’ fund stood
at HK$537 million or 89 HK cents per share. Cash, bank
balances and deposits stood at approximately HK$442 million.
The board of directors (the “Board”) is pleased to propose a final
dividend of 1.5 HK cents per share, which equals to a payout ratio of
approximately 22 % for this financial year.

The year proved to be an extraordinary difficult year for the global
economy. The unprecedented financial turmoil triggered by the
sub-prime mortgage crisis in the United States has undermined the
stability of the financial markets world-wide. As Hong Kong is one of
the most open economies in the world, the financial tsunami has had
an impact on Hong Kong’s economy and its construction market. New
construction projects have been significantly reduced, making the
business environment extremely challenging for the industry. Against
this background, the Group has taken decisive actions and exercised
prudent risk management, thus managed to achieve a satisfactory
result for the year. Furthermore, the Group has secured new contracts
amounting to approximately HK$4,150 million. As at year end, the
value of contracts on hand was approximately HK$10,625 million,
a 12% increase when compared to the previous year. The Group's
outlook for the year 2009/10 remains optimistic.

BURER:

AARAR BTREFREZXEEERAFRE
MBAR(AEEDBE-_ZTNF=A=1+—H
L FEZFRH -

RNEBFRNLEEBEM2IEBT(ZETNF:
49 13BE L) * REAFHA10% o BREFE(L s FliE
400088 (ZZET)N\F - 119B8 L) » LFERMIE
#966% ° WEE £ A5.37R BT FAK8IEN - ]
T BRITEBLRERIEIREST - EER(EF
Bl BRIRES/RRBIEISEN  BEREL
KU F22% °

oA R  RERBLEND  BE2ERS
BTG IBEM - HEERY R AP —EARKHMN
MAEER R HEBROETRETE  HEAR
R CREHNE c EHELEE KNERIH
BRAT BEEEEEIFOHREBNOKE A5EH
NRENITE  BEEEBREMNRKRERE  EILERHE
HIEESSAMENESE - FREBEIETHEY
MSBAETNHEHN  EFLEB AL FHANR
BEH106.25EF T WEFEKRE12% : EEY
RERAISIRITLESE -

The Hong Kong and Mainland
governments have placed
infrastructure investment as the
focus of their stimulation plans. The
Group will continue to explore and

take opportunities to develop our
business and maximize return to our
shareholders.

BEARABBFEH ZRBEELR » FAOME
DEEREREN - AKESSHESRRIEE
HEBEREL  RRRTREEMNDR



While market sentiment has improved in recent months, the prospect
of the global economy remains uncertain and it will likely to continue
throughout 2009. Many governments, including Hong Kong and the
Mainland, have placed infrastructure investment as the focus of their
stimulation plans, aiming to strengthen community development.
With the expected growth in the construction market, the Group will
continue to explore and take opportunities to develop our business
and maximize return to our shareholders.

Despite the tough business environment, our staff continued to strive
for excellence in delivery of quality works and services to our clients
and our community. Our team has been acclaimed with more than
10 awards in the area of quality, project management, environmental
performance and safety. In addition, the Group is also recognized by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service as a Caring Company, in
recognition of our consistent efforts in building a harmonious Hong
Kong society.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Board for its successful leadership, and to our shareholders and
business partners for their steadfast support. Rest assured that the
Group remains dedicated to the community and aims to deliver
ongoing rewards to our shareholders in the long run.

James Chiu, OBE, JP
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009 >
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
THBRERBES

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It is with pleasure that | report our satisfactory results for the
year, having sustained the business in the face of the volatile
global financial environment. Presented in this report are
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009, together with
comparative figures for 2008. The consolidated statements
for income, cash flow, changes in equity, and the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet, all of which are audited, together
with explanatory notes, are set out on pages 57 to 145 of this
report. The annual results have been reviewed by the Company’s
Audit Committee.

During the year, the global economy and the property market were
hard hit by the global financial crisis. Year-on-year GDP growth dived
from 4.1% in the second quarter of 2008, to -7.8% by the first
quarter of 2009. The challenging economic climate and tightened
capital supply held the private sector off any new development plans,
leading to weakened demand for construction and development
services. Global market atmosphere did not rebound until the end
of the first quarter of 2009, when the local construction industry
benefitted from the acceleration of a number of public construction
projects in the fourth quarter of 2008 — these projects are part of the
stimulus initiatives implemented by the Hong Kong Government.

As the property market consolidated, the
Group rode on its wealth of experience
to tap on quality projects, laying the
foundation for sustainable returns.

BEWETESRSEATR  SEENEZRAEELEHR
AEZEREER  RRARNEBRREEEMR -

BURER:
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SANRMEBERESE -
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We remain dedicated to sustainability through the tough economic
times. Before financial tsunami, the Group has cautiously avoided
over-expansion to aggressive projects, despite abundant opportunities
in the previous year — a time of optimism paired with surging
cost of labour and material costs and increasing financial volatility.
As the property market consolidated in mid 2008 with cost of
labour and materials at a normal level, the Group rode on its wealth
of experience to tap on quality projects, laying the foundation for
sustainable returns.

Review of financial performance and positions

For the year under review, the economy of Hong Kong registered a
sharp decline after the global financial tsunami in September 2008.
Most of the investors and property developers have become more
cautious in their investment plans which resulted in the decrease in
demand for construction and project development services. Although
the Hong Kong Government has resolved to speed up its Ten Major
Infrastructure Projects, the effect will be expected to come on stream
in late 2009.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group reported a consolidated
turnover of approximately HK$4,427 million, a year-on-year decrease
of 10%. Gross profit dropped by 16% to approximately HK$196
million due to decrease in turnover and increase in material prices,
wages and competition. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year was approximately HK$40 million, representing
a decrease of 66% as compared with approximately HK$119
million of the last corresponding year. If the non-recurring gain of
approximately HK$24 million in last corresponding period were
excluded, the decrease was approximately 58%. Earnings per share
were 6.7 HK cents.

With a proposed final dividend per share of 1.5 HK cents, the dividend
payout ratio is approximately 22%.

Total assets were approximately HK$2,393 million, decreased by
approximately 9% as compared to approximately HK$2,633 million
at the end of last year. Current assets were approximately HK$2,187
million, representing approximately 1.22 times the current liabilities.
Net cash was approximately HK$126 million and the equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company stood at approximately
HK$537 million.

s RMNEEALBNBRERR - SRS
BA I EARLBOEL  ARBDAEAN
RESMHRARE  2REHBERY RANE
R B RN AT AEAR  BENEDS
R-BTNERES - ADRREHHERERS
AT AEERNEREELH AESEED
HE - ARRM LR TR -

Pt 15 2R 3R R R [ R

FABTELEE _ZEZ\FNABRESRERER
ENB REBNKREELRERMHYEREFEIRE
HEH SRYRENERERRBEZIFRRL - #
REABRFEMREZE T RERIRE - AMEHKES
ERBEGEEF _ZTNFRSERR -

HE-_ZTZAF=ZA=+—HLEE X&EEZ
A % ¥ Y B4,427,000,00008 T 0 B E F R
D10% - AR EXTE I MEREEMBER
E¥FHe EARMEBRFME - EFRD16%EL
196,000,000 7T c REE 2 AN A AlE=FFHE AR
16 % 7 49 /40,000,000 7T + 82 € £9119,000,000
B IT R 266% o MR EF 2 LB MK EL
24,000,000 7t A B8 B 40 %258% R A4 7
6.7l o

BRRN 2 KRB AFR1.5E - BREIR B &
A22% o

B E A A2,393,000,000/ 7T 0 B EEEFLE
§2,633,000,000 7T * B2 H19% ° MBEELN R
2,187,000,000%87c * HE RN R B EZ1.2215 - ]
& FE4/5126,000,0007 7T © MARQRERFTEA

JE{E#EZ= B 49 4537,000,000/8 7T ©
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Chief Executive Officer's Report
ITHRABBES

Net cash flow used in operating activities was about HK$33 million
and net cash outflow in respect of investing and financing activities
was approximately HK$26 million, resulting in a net decrease in cash
and cash equivalents of about HK$59 million for the year.

Review of operations

Management Contracting, the Group’s core business, has remained
the major contributor of revenue this year. Turnover reached
about HK$4,402 million, approximately 9% down compared with
HK$4,853 million in 2008. The progress of the contracts on hand was
satisfactory. We have managed to minimize the impact of volatility
of material prices and wages and achieved a net profit margin for
Management Contracting division of 2.0%. The operating profit
amounted to approximately HK$90 million (2008: HK$111 million).
As at 31 March 2009, the value of contracts on hand for the division
is approximately HK$10,442 million (2008: HK$8,934 million) and
the value of work remaining is approximately HK$4,333 million
(2008: HK$3,795 million).

During the year under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction contracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$4,149 million (2008: HK$1,565 million),
representing a year-on-year growth by approximately 165%. Set out
below are some of the new contracts secured during the year:

° Residential development at Tai Wai (HK$1,273 million)

o Redevelopment of Pak Sui Yuen, Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (HK$948 million)

. Residential development at Broadcast Drive (HK$254 million)

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009

R & 5% 2 35 £ F 4 /33,000,000 7 + M
FAREE R#EES 23R %% 4 726,000,000
B WAFEZReRERSZFBHEBEAHBEL
59,000,000/ 707 T °

¥ B

FREEEDAEB X EER  TRAFEZEXE
WA BRR - B 3 BAE4,402,000,0008 70 - -
= J\F 2.4,853,000,0007 7T * 2 499% ° B AT F
BECTIRIER ERSTAME - AERBEIFMK
NWKFHeRBEEMBRRRDH 2 ERERE I
H152.0% 2 BB AH - £ &% F 49 290,000,000
BIL(ZZTZ)\4F : 111,000,000 7T) e R - ZTF
NFZA=1T—H AEEEITEHNENRELN
10,442,000,0005% 7T (ZZZ )\ 4 : 8,934,000,000/%
7T) - MmeR T LIE & 4 & @ R4 /&4,333,000,00078
JL(ZZZ )\ : 3,795,000,0007 7T) °

EEBEERN AEZEEPMAMBIHEETRE
A W AE#) /54,149,000,00008 T( —BE )\ F:
1,565,000,000/87T) * A F R AL MN4AI165% © A
TARABOAFEMREZHEL

o  KNEMF=EWEIREIEH (1,273,000,0007% 7T)

o HBEIBPINBEMILEEIEF (948,000,0007%8
7T)

o EREMf=EWEIREIER (254,000,000 7T)

B A ground breaking ceremony was held at the amenity and
community building in Tin Ching Estate in December 2008.

RKEHBERE R AER 20085127 BB LE -



W Artist impression of Pak Shek Kok Development for the engineering B The Redevelopment of Pak Sui Yuen, the Hong Kong Polytechnic

infrastructure works. Total contract sum reaches HK$222 million.
DHBEAAREITEIEREZETEZRE - G4EE2.22(8HT

. Hotel at Tai Kok Tsui (HK$250 million)

. Trackside noise barriers at Tai Wai, MTR East Rail Line (HK$158
million)

e Amenity and community building at Tin Shui Wai (HK$152
million)

o Main laying along Castle Peak Road (HK$131 million)

. New extension to Canossa Hospital (HK$127 million)

o Hotel development at Caohejing, Shanghai (RMB337 million)

Subsequent to the year end, this division has secured contracts of
approximately HK$2,662 million including:

. Residential development at Tai Wai Phase 3 (HK$896 million)

o Swimming pool complex at Tuen Mun (HK$517 million)

. Redevelopment at Tung Tau Estate (HK$431 million)

e  Composite development at Wood Road, Wanchai (HK$322
million)

o Kennedy Town Swimming Pool at MTR West Island Line (HK$311
million)

The Property Development Management reported a loss amounted
to approximately HK$10 million. The value of contracts on hand for
the Property Development Management division as at year end was
approximately HK$183 million (2008: HK$573million).

University is located near to the Cross-Harbour Tunnel — another prime
project delivered by Paul Y. Engineering.

%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiglﬁﬁ CERERES —ELIAB  AWEE

e KAMWHEIEER (250,000,000 T)
o BERE G AERR S ME (158,000,000 7T)

o RIKEMEEE R AE (152,000,000 7T)

o FHIIAKKBEESHR (131,000,000 7T)

o EAHIEEBTIERE (127,000,0007% 7T)

e LHEENKHEEERRER(ARK
337,000,0007T)

EEEBHPIEF A ZBEISHEE%2,662,000,000
BILZEY  EReiE:

o KEF=EYEIE 35 (896,000,0007%5 L)
o HEFIEEAENFKMIER (517,000,0007% 7T)

o  THREENEE (431,000,000 7T)

o EfFEELREIREIEHR (322,000,000 T)

o BEEESEERE I (311,000,000
JT)

V)23 R E 1B E P F A8 1S B 18 £910,000,000
Bwe BAHEFHECFHEZIREANLEY
183,000,000/ 7T (= ZFZ A\ 573,000,000 7T) ©
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group adheres to prudent funding and treasury policies in
its operations, maintaining a variety of credit facilities to meet
requirements for working capital. At 31 March 2009, the Group had
total borrowings of approximately HK$316 million, approximately
HK$268 million of which are repayable within one year. Cash,
bank balances and deposits at year end totalled approximately
HK$442 million.

Approximately 97% of the Group's borrowings as at 31 March
2009 bear interest at floating rates and all of the borrowings are
denominated either in Hong Kong Dollars or Renminbi. The Renminbi
borrowings are directly tied in with the Group’s business in the
Mainland. The Group's gearing ratio, based on total borrowings
of approximately HK$316 million and equity attributable to equity
holders of around HK$537 million, stands at about 0.59.

Employees

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had 1,349 full-time employees,
including the Directors of the Group. The Group’s remuneration
package is based on overall market rates and employee performance,
as well as the performance of the Group. Remuneration package
is comprised of salary, a performance-based bonus, and other
benefits including training, provident funds and medical coverage.
Three share incentive schemes (namely share option scheme, share
award scheme and share financing plan) are in place to motivate and
reward eligible employees.

M An artist impression of the hotel complex at Caohejing, Shanghai.

EEENCRESEEE ZBRE -
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RBEERERRR
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FIl ATEERBEBMNEEAMEN FEEEE
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HERBROMERE) REEREBIRESRBR

= -

M The Property Development on Broadcast Drive comprises three luxurious
residential blocks.

EREZRAMEEREAR  TROFEEE=EREEE -



W Yangkou Port, which is built under project management of Paul Y. Engineering, declared soft open in Fall 2008. The 12.6km-Yellow Sea Crossing is an
important component of the port.

RRERZX B TR ER2FDER20085 YL EM - TREFEEZEERI126QAE  BREATSREM L EHARE -

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2009, the Group pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$65 million, property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$18 million, and charged the Group’s benefits over
certain construction contracts to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at the year end, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect
of guarantee of approximately HK$12 million given to a bank for
banking facilities granted to an associate.

Commitments

As at the year end, the Group has expenditure contracted but
not provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$1 million.

Securities in issue

As at year end, there were 602,677,142 shares in issue, and
outstanding share options over a total of 3,600,000 shares with
subscription prices HK$1.34 (for options over 600,000 shares),
HK$1.36 (for options over 2,000,000 shares) and HK$1.40 (for
options over 1,000,000 shares) per share.

EEEA

RZEZNAF=A=1+—"H8 ZEEEEEY
65,000,000 7T 2 $2 1717 5%+ 4718,000,0007% 7T 2
M MR ERE RAEBERETEESOZA
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Chief Executive Officer's Report
ITHRABBES

During the year under review, an aggregate of 5,379,076 shares were
issued, which included 1,365,076 shares by way of scrip dividend and
4,014,000 shares by way of share options exercise. Share options over
18,300,000 shares were lapsed and share options over 4,014,000
shares were exercised during the year. No share options were granted
during the year.

Final dividend

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has resolved to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1.5 HK cents per share
(2008: 5.5 HK cents per share) for the year ended 31 March 2009 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Friday, 18 September 2009. The
final dividend is expected to be paid to shareholders via post on or
around Friday, 16 October 2009.

The Board has also proposed that the final dividend should be satisfied
by way of a scrip dividend of shares, with an option to elect cash
for part or all of such dividend. The market value of the shares to be
issued under the scrip dividend proposal will be fixed by reference
to the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares for the
three consecutive trading days ending on 18 September 2009, less
a discount of 5% of such average price or the par value of shares,
whichever is higher. The proposed scrip dividend is conditional upon
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting listing of, and
permission to deal in, the new shares to be issued and the passing
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company of an
ordinary resolution to approve the final dividend. A circular detailing
the scrip dividend proposal and a form of election will be sent to
shareholders.

Close of register of members

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the
purpose of determining the entitlements to the proposed final
dividend from Wednesday, 16 September 2009 to Friday, 18
September 2009, both dates inclusive, during which period no share
transfers shall be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited (26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong) no later than 4:00
p.m. on Tuesday, 15 September 2009.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the company’s listed securities
During the year ended 31 March 2009, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the
Company’s listed securities.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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Outlook

With different economies launching extensive market revitalizing
schemes to combat the financial tsunami, we have seen some
signs of economic recovery in the first quarter of 2009. The overall
effectiveness of such schemes are yet to be seen, thus 2009 remains to
be a challenging year for Hong Kong. With the sustaining growth of
Mainland’s economy and its support to Hong Kong, coupled with Hong
Kong's healthy financial system, we believe Hong Kong will be one of
the regions that can resume the economy growth momentum in the
foreseeable future. Moreover, as the government steps up its effort
in the implementation of the Ten Major Infrastructure Projects, we
believe these projects will provide an impetus to the recovery of the
economy and help to rejuvenate the local construction market. As we
remain dedicated to building Hong Kong, the Group is ready to embrace
the challenges and to explore and take opportunities lying ahead.

On the Mainland front, substantial proportion of the RMB4 trillion
stimulus program launched by the Central Government is designated
to the sector of infrastructure investment. This represents a strong
demand for professional construction and project management
services. The Group is ready to capture these opportunities with its
acute market sense in property development management, reputation
for expertise in construction management, and its strong track record
in the Mainland.

Furthermore, despite the current downturn of the property markets
in Macau and the Middle East, the Group will continue to maintain its
presence in these markets and to capture the business opportunities
arises from the economic recovery.

Looking forward, with our solid foundation and capable management
team, the Group is well-positioned to capture the increase
opportunities in Hong Kong and China for our business development
as well as maximize the return to our shareholders.

Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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Biography of Directors
EEEEDIT

Ir James Chiu

R TI2RD

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

FmREE

James Chiu, OBE, JE aged 70, has been the Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)
of the Company since March 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ir Chiu has served Hong Kong’s construction
industry for 45 years. He was the Managing Director of the General Electric Company of
Hong Kong Limited from 1984 to 1998.

He has held a number of important industry roles. He was a President of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and a Chairman of the British Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong.
Currently, he is the President of Hong Kong Electrical & Mechanical Contractors’ Association;
and a member of Construction Industry Council.

Ir Chiu is a Fellow of the Institution of Engineering and Technology (formerly known as
Institution of Electrical Engineers), the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Institution of
Engineers Australia and Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.

MR - OBE - JP 705 A-ZEZRFZARBERRAZEHE BILIFRHITEE)
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Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 58, has been the Deputy Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
of the Company since January 2005. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee
and Disclosures Committee of the Company. Mr Lau has over 36 years of international
experience in corporate development and management in infrastructure developments
as well as construction and engineering services involving the road, rail, port, power,
telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. Mr Lau is
the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of PYIl Corporation Limited (“PYI”) (00498.
HK), a significant developer, owner and operator of major bulk cargo ports in the Yangtze
River Region in China. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of China National
Building Material Company Limited (03323.HK). He is also a Director of PYI Treasury Group
Limited, Growing Success Limited and Paul Y. Investments Limited, all of which as well as PYI
have interests in the shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Ir Dr Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley
HIFEE L - T2AD

Mr Cheung Lee Ming, Andy
RAMESTE

Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley, aged 51, has been the Executive Director & Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since September 2008. He is also the Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee and Finance
and Investment Committee of the Company, and a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ir Dr Wong has over 27 years of experience in the field of engineering, design,
construction, project management, property development and corporate management.
Ir Dr Wong holds an Honours Degree in civil engineering awarded by the University of
Manchester, U.K., a Master of Science Degree in finance awarded by the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a Master of Business Degree and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
(he received this Doctor of Business Administration Degree in January 2009) awarded by the
University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
a Registered Professional Engineer in Hong Kong, a Chartered Professional Engineer of
Australia, a U.K. Chartered Civil and Structural Engineer and a Vice President of the Hong
Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators. Ir Dr Wong is also a Registered Structural
Engineer and an Authorised Person (Engineer) registered under section 3 of the Buildings
Ordinance.
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Cheung Lee Ming, Andy, aged 43, joined the Group in March 2008. Mr Cheung has been
the Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company since July 2008. He is also
a member of the Finance and Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee and Executive
Committee of the Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr
Cheung has over 16 years’ experience in the areas of business development, finance and
audit. Mr Cheung holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration from Boston University
and a Master of Business Administration degree from McMaster University. He is a Certified
Public Accountant of the State of lllinois in the United States.
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Biography of Directors
EEREGN

Professor Lee Chack Fan

FREHE

Lee Chack Fan, SBS, JP aged 64, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of
the Company, and a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Professor Lee is the Chair Professor of Geotechnical Engineering and Director of
the School of Professional and Continuing Education, the University of Hong Kong. He is
also an Academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering. Professor Lee graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1968 and subsequently received his Master's degree from The
University of Hong Kong in 1970 and a Ph.D. from the University of Western Ontario, Canada
in 1972. Professor Lee is an internationally renowned expert in geotechnical engineering. He
worked for Ontario Hydro in Canada for some 20 years before he joined his alma mater in
1994. He has participated in the design of many massive dams and nuclear power stations.
He has served as a specialist consultant or an advisor to many international bodies such
as the United Nations Development Plan, World Bank, Asian Development Bank, etc. on
numerous energy and infrastructure projects in many parts of the world. Professor Lee’s
eminent achievement in civil engineering has been highly recognized; he was awarded the K
Y Lo Medal in 2000 by the Engineering Institute of Canada and was elected the Academician
of the Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003 in recognition of his contributions to the
engineering profession. He has been appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government in July 2003, and he has been awarded the Silver
Bauhinia Star in July 2005.

Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Harbour-front Enhancement Committee, the
Chairman of Veterinary Surgeons Board, the Chairman of Hong Kong Institute for Promotion
of Chinese Culture, the Chairman of the Council of the Lord Wilson Heritage Trust and the
President of the Fu Hui Charity Foundation.
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Mr lain Ferguson Bruce

lain Ferguson Bruce, aged 68, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Finance and Investment
Committee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Bruce joined KPMG in Hong
Kong in 1964 and was elected to its partnership in 1971. He was the Senior Partner of
KPMG from 1991 until his retirement in 1996 and served as Chairman of KPMG Asia Pacific
from 1993 to 1997. Since 1964, Mr Bruce has been a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland, and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants with over 44 years of international experience in accounting and consulting.
He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of The Hong
Kong Securities Institute. He is the chairman of KCS Limited, a director of Citibank (Hong
Kong) Limited and is a member of the Board of Stewards of the Hong Kong Jockey Club.
Mr Bruce serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the boards of several publicly
listed companies in Hong Kong, Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. (00345.HK), Wing On
Company International Limited (00289.HK) and Tencent Holdings Limited (00700.HK). He
is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Noble Group Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, China Medical
Technologies Inc., a company whose shares are traded on Nasdaqg and Yingli Green Energy
Holding Company Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the New York Stock
Exchange.
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Biography of Senior Management
SREEEEEDN

Mr Law Hon Wa, William
BEERE

Ms Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
HgERAL/NME

Law Hon Wa, William, aged 44, has been the Financial Controller of the Company
since May 2008. He is responsible for all financial management and accounting matters
of the Group. Mr Law has over 20 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. He holds a Bachelor degree in business administration and a Master degree in
applied finance. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and also a practising
certified public accountant in Hong Kong.
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Mui Ching Hung, Joanna, aged 40, has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since January 2005. She is responsible for all company secretarial matters of the Group. Ms
Mui has over 17 years' experience in company secretarial field. She holds a Master degree
in language and law, and is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Corporate Governance Report

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance because we believe that is the best way to
enhance shareholder value. The Company places strong emphasis
on an effective board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, segregation of duties with clear accountability,
sound internal control, appropriate risk-assessment procedures, and
transparency to all shareholders.

The Company complied with all code provisions and, where
applicable, adopted the recommended best practices of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Role

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s strategic
direction and the controls applied to its activities, and ensuring that
Management has appropriate processes in place for risk-assessment,
management, and internal control over the Company’s day-to-
day affairs.

The Board has in place a list of decisions that are to be retained for
the Board decision. These matters include:

Corporate strategy;

Financial reporting and control;
Major financial arrangements;
Risk management;

Succession planning;

o U s W =

Notifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing
Rules; and

7. Recommendations to shareholders regarding appointment of
external auditors, dividend payments, capital reorganization and
scheme of arrangement.

The Board has delegated all day-to-day operations and management
of the Company’s business to Management under the leadership of
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors to ensure independent viewpoints in all discussions. As at the
date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors, including three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director, and
two Executive Directors. Board members are listed below:

Board of Directors

EERTHATESEIIFNTES ZAGREEE
MARMENWABBIEE NAREAY EF
RHANCEFAR(BRE=UBIFHTEE  —
HATEERMUATES) - EFRHKETL
s

EER

Independent Non-Executive Directors Non-Executive Director Executive Directors

Bk TES FHITES HITES

e James Chiu e Lau Ko Yuen, Tom e \Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley
(Chairman) (Deputy Chairman) (Chief Executive Officer)
WS (FE) 2SR (BFE) =BG (TTHAEE)

e |ee Chack Fan e Cheung Lee Ming, Andy
& PN (Chief Financial Officer)

e lain Ferguson Bruce RN R (B F4a )

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages 16 to
19 of this annual report. They are also available on the Company’s
website.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2009, half of the Board was
made up of Independent Non-Executive Directors, one of whom
had appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, as required by the Listing Rules.
There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has given an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. As a good corporate governance practice, every
member of the Nomination Committee abstains from assessing his
own independence.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by separate
individuals, with segregated duties. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is clearly
established and set out in writing.

The Chairman of the Company is Ir James Chiu (an Independent
Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company). The Chief Executive Officer is Ir Dr Wong Kam
Cheong, Stanley who was appointed to fill the vacancy caused by the
resignation of the former Chief Executive Officer, Mr Mok Yat Fan,
Edmond, on 1 September 2008.

The role of the Chairman of the Company is to oversee the Company’s
strategic direction and the controls applied to its activities. The
Chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the
Company establishes sound corporate governance practices and
procedures. He also encourages all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the affairs of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall performance
of the Company and plays a leading role in delivering a growth
strategy. He provides leadership for Management, oversees the day-
to-day operations of the Group, and monitors the achievement of
Company objectives set by the Board.

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors were appointed for a term of
approximately three years expiring at the conclusion of the third
annual general meeting from the date of their appointment/
re-election, subject to the Company’s Bye-laws. Pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement from
office by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for
re-election by shareholders.
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Meetings =f ]
Details of Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board FREENEE_ETNF_A=ZT—HLEFER
committee meetings during the year ended 31 March 2009 are set HEEERez ket BgesoHEBRIM
out in the following table: K

Meetings attended/held during the year ended 31 March 2009

BE-ZTAF=ZAZ+-HLFEREE ET2838

Finance and
Investment
Audit Remuneration Nomination Committee Disclosures

Board Committee Committee Committee  Bf#ERIRE  Committee

BE=ER EREEE FMZEEE REEES ZEg REZES
Number of meetings held during 5 3 3 2 2 2
the year
FARITEEZIRE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
James Chiu (Chairman) 5/5 33 3/3
WIS (F/E)
Lee Chack Fan 5/5 3/3 3/3 2/2
ES GRS
lain Ferguson Bruce 5/5 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
Non-Executive Director
FHITES
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 4/5 2/2 2/2
(Deputy Chairman)
SR (EEE)
Executive Directors
HITES
Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley 3/3 2/3 1”n
(Chief Executive Officer) (Note 1)
=R E (FTHAES) (HTiET)
Cheung Lee Ming, Andy 4/4 17 1”1
(Chief Financial Officer) (Note 2)
SRR (I F4aE) (Hit2)
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond il —/- il
(Chief Executive Officer) (Note 3)
BN (7B A8 (B 7F3)
Lee Hon Chiu (Note 4) —/~ —/- —/-
PR (Hata)
Average attendance rate 96.4% 100.0% 88.9% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Notes:

(1) Ir Dr Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley was appointed as a Director with effect
from 1 September 2008. He was also appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Finance and Investment Committee with
effect from 1 September 2008.

(2)  Mr Cheung Lee Ming, Andy was appointed as a Director with effect
from 18 July 2008. He was also appointed as a member of the Finance
and Investment Committee and Disclosures Committee with effect from
1 May 2008.

(3) Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond resigned as a Director with effect from
1 September 2008. He also ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Finance and Investment Committee with effect from
1 September 2008.

(4)  Mr Lee Hon Chiu resigned as a Director with effect from 1 May 2008. He
also ceased to be a member of the Finance and Investment Committee
and Disclosures Committee with effect from 1 May 2008.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. Regular Board
meetings are usually scheduled at the beginning of the year to give all
Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend. Directors
receive at least 14 days’ prior written notice of regular Board meetings
and an agenda. The Board papers, including supporting analyses and
relevant background information, are normally sent to all Directors
at least 3 days before the Board meeting. For other Board meetings,
Directors are given as much notice as possible in the circumstances.

In order to have an effective Board, Directors are provided with
information on activities and developments in the Group’s business
on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised of the latest
developments of the Group. In addition, the Directors have full access
to information on the Group and are able to seek independent
professional advice whenever they deem it necessary.

To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared their
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed are not counted in the quorum of meetings and abstain
from voting on the relevant resolutions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings with
sufficient details of matters discussed are kept in safe custody by the
Company Secretary, and are open for inspection by Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, Board committees have been
set up with written terms of reference which clearly define the role,
authority, and functions of each committee. Each Board committee is
required to report their decisions or recommendations to the Board.
Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board committee meetings
during the year ended 31 March 2009 are shown on page 34 of this
annual report.

The role and function of, and a summary of work done by, each Board
committee during the year ended 31 March 2009 are set out below:

Audit Committee

Composition

This Committee currently comprises Ir James Chiu (Chairman of this
Committee), Professor Lee Chack Fan and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.
All the members of this Committee are Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Role and Function

The terms of reference of this Committee were revised in the light
of the amendments to the Listing Rules, which became effective on
1 January 2009, to reflect the new oversight role of this Committee
to review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

The principal duties of this Committee include oversight of the Group’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures, review of
the Group’s financial information, and review of the relationship with
the external auditors of the Company. This Committee also meets
regularly with the Company’s external auditors to discuss the audit
process and accounting issues.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by this Committee
during the year ended 31 March 2009:

1. Review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2008;

2. Review of the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2008;

3. Review of the Group’s financial information, financial reporting

system, internal control procedures, and financial and accounting
policies and practices;
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Approval of remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors;

Recommendation to the Board to re-appoint the external
auditors at the 2008 annual general meeting;

Review of the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process, and review of policy
on engaging the external auditors to supply non-audit services;
Review of the audit plan for the year ended 31 March 2009;
Review of the Company’s systems of financial controls, internal
control and risk management;

Review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function, and their training programmes and budget;

Review internal/external auditor’s significant findings and

recommendations, and monitored the subsequent implementation;

Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the
Company;

Approval of the 2009 and 2010 internal audit plans;

Review of the continuing connected transactions; and

Met with the external auditors, in the absence of Management.
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Remuneration Committee

Composition

This Committee currently comprises Ir James Chiu (Chairman of
this Committee), Ir Dr Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley and Professor
Lee Chack Fan. The majority of the members of this Committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Role and Function

This Committee has been established to ensure there is a formal
and transparent procedure for setting policy on the remuneration
of Executive Directors and for fixing the remuneration packages
for all Directors. This Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and Management, and making
recommendations on the manpower deployment plan.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by this Committee
during the year ended 31 March 2009:

1. Review and approval of performance-based remuneration for
employees of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009;

2. Consideration and determination of year-end bonus for the
Executive Directors;

3. Approval of emoluments of new Directors and senior
management;

4. Review of the Company’s remuneration policy; and
5. Review of trends in compensation and benefits programmes.

Remuneration Policy

The Company ensures that the remuneration offered is appropriate for
the duties, in line with market practice and pay levels, and effective
in attracting, retaining and motivating employees (including Executive
Directors). For Non-Executive Directors, the Company ensures that
they are sufficiently but not excessively compensated for their efforts
and time dedicated to the Company. No individual determines his or
her own remuneration.

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to
market competitiveness, job responsibilities, and performance of the
Company and the individual. Details of the emoluments of Directors
during the year ended 31 March 2009 are set out on page 97 of this
annual report.
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Nomination Committee

Composition

This Committee currently comprises Professor Lee Chack Fan (Chairman
of this Committee), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.
The majority of the members of this Committee are Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

Role and Function

This Committee was established to ensure there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new
Directors to the Board. The duties of this Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and, if necessary,
recommending changes. It is also responsible for identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board and selecting, or
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
to be nominated for directorships.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by this Committee
during the year ended 31 March 2009:

1. Nomination of Ir Dr Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley and Mr Cheung
Lee Ming, Andy as Directors;

2. Review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

3. Assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

4. Review of the Company’s policy on nomination of Directors.

Nomination Procedure

This Committee reviews the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and makes recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes.

Appointments of new Directors are first considered by this Committee.
In considering the appointment of a Director, this Committee
applies criteria such as professional and educational background,
relevant experience, and qualifications. The recommendations of this
Committee are then put to the Board for consideration and approval.
Thereafter, all Directors appointed to fill casual vacancy are subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment.

Management and the Company Secretary liaise with the newly
appointed Directors to acquaint them with their duties and
responsibilities as Directors and the business operations of the
Company. A package of orientation materials setting out their duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance, and
other relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong is also provided
to each newly appointed Director.

Details on legal and regulatory changes are also provided to all
Directors in the discharge of their duties.

REZEEE

AR
ALEEGHRFAFTESHUR(FEZEGER) 25
JR 55 A& Klain Ferguson Bruce A4/ - AZ B &K
BOKERBUIFNITES -

AGkEEE
KIALZBEEERRERENEENMAESERS
HE—EENX KREABLABEAEZREF - A
ZEGZIZRACEBRIEERIAE  ABK
AR IRV ERRELNENERZ ETAEYE
BERMAZEERZAL  EERALEEEA
TR AEERIFLHERS -

ITHEME
AEZEBENBE_ZEZNF=ZA=+—"HIEFEZ
THEBENT :

1. REEREEL IREMERIRLERE
%

2. BAEZERZIAE  ABRMAK(BIERE-
A8

3. FHEBMIERTEERZEUE R

4. BYUBABARRERRERZBR -

RERF

ARZEETEHMRIETRZIAE - ABRAK(E
REREE - MEELR)  YEABEENERE
=REMtER -

MEFZZIMAZECHELER - BREFRS
FER  AZESZEEMALEERHESS
HELRLEESHIH YRAEEREFAEZIK
EAREZ B - W& PIE SEMEFERM
BREANEEHERSEZERZERABRAE L
AL RE AR -

ERENAFIMEGMENBELRIES  BRER
BEAREZZBERERE URRBIZEBLE
YAEREEIIERE ETRA - RERHIRFAR
AR ERTESEENBERRTFERZD
A

DR AR B IR BB TR 5 E 0
REE 2 SBHE -

REZEXEEERAF 200951

29



30

Corporate Governance Report

AN Al s S/
i E/H#ﬁ%

Finance and Investment Committee

Composition

This Committee currently comprises Mr lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman
of this Committee), Ir Dr Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley and Mr Cheung
Lee Ming, Andy.

Role and Function

This Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to investing in assets, evaluating
the budgets of all key expenditures, reviewing financial performance
against forecast, and considering dividend payout.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by this Committee
during the year ended 31 March 2009:

1. Review and evaluation of actual-to-budget results for the
year ended 31 March 2008 and for the six months ended
30 September 2008 (including budget of all key expenditures);

2. Review of financial performance against forecast;

3. Discussion on changes in accounting standards which may affect
the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008 and for the six months ended 30 September 2008; and

4.  Consideration of the payment of the 2008 final dividend and
2009 interim dividend.

Disclosures Committee

Composition

This Committee currently comprises Mr lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman of
this Committee), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Cheung Lee Ming, Andy.

Role and Function

This Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing disclosures to
shareholders, the public, and relevant statutory authorities, and
for overseeing compliance with any applicable legal requirements
for disclosure.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by this Committee during the year ended 31 March
2009 included the review of the content of announcements relating
to the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2008, and the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 September 2008.
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Executive Committee

Composition

The current members of this Committee are Ir Dr Wong Kam Cheong,
Stanley (Chairman of this Committee) and Mr Cheung Lee Ming,
Andy.

Role and Function
This Committee is mainly responsible for handling the management
and operations of the day-to-day business of the Group.

Management Functions

The division of responsibilities between the Board and Management
are clearly set out in writing to ensure that there is a segregation of
duties with clear accountability.

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman of the Company,
has delegated all the day-to-day operations and management of the
Company’s business to Management, who is under the leadership of
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Management is required
to report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2009.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the accounts
department, the Directors ensure that the financial statements of the
Group are prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable financial reporting standards.
The Directors also ensure that the financial statements of the Group
are published in a timely manner.

The statement by the external auditors of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities of the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 55 and 56 of
this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS
At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 4 September

2008, shareholders approved the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditors for the financial
year ended 31 March 2009.

The fees paid to the external auditors for audit and non-audit services
for the year ended 31 March 2009 (and the comparative figures for
the year ended 31 March 2008) are as follows:

SN R BUAM

EARR BT N\FAANBRTZRIBFAE
L BRIOEEBEY « BERSEAMITAEAR
ABE-TTAFZA=+ - BUEFEZIERE
ki ©

BE-_TTAF=A=+-RLEE(RAHE
SEENESASH-BLEEIHTHR) B
{5 2% 2% T SNER A AT 2 2 R SR AR R 7S 2 B
mF -

2009 2008

—EENF —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Audit fee BREER 3,197 3,238
Non-audit services fees FREBREEH

Interim review fee FEREEIE R 630 630

Tax services T PR 7% 304 269

MPF audit BIESIZE 17 14

Agreed upon procedures H b FERARTE - 36

951 949

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
and ensuring the continuing objectivity and independence of the
external auditors. The Audit Committee of the Company has resolved
to recommend the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as external auditors of the Company. This resolution has
been endorsed by the Board and is subject to final approval and
authorization by the shareholders at the 2009 Annual General
Meeting.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Company’s system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. In meeting its
responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness across the
Company’s business operations and has put in place policies and
procedures which provide a framework for controls and management
of risks.

The Board is also committed to managing risks and monitoring its
business and financial activities in a manner which enables it to
maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks
which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and enhance resilience to
external events.
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Internal Control

The Company has had in place an integrated internal control
framework, issued by COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) in the United States,
in complying with Code Provisions of Listing Rules. Internal control
is defined as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
e Reliability of financial reporting; and
e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The main characteristics of the Company’s internal control framework
are set out below:
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This internal control framework can be divided into five inter-related
components: control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
monitoring and information & communication. It serves as criteria
for the effectiveness of the internal control system in supporting the
achievement of the separate but overlapping operational, financial
reporting and compliance objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system of
internal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility of day-
to-day management of operational risks and the implementation of
mitigation measures lies with Management.

Built into our system are checks and balances such that no single
party can “monopolise” a transaction, activity or process to conceal
irregularities. Hence, Management has undertaken the following
additional checks and balances procedures:

e A clear functional organizational structure was set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities. Each
division clearly understands their scope of business and authorities
delegated by Management;

e A "Business Policy and Quality Management” directive was
issued by Management to address various important aspects in
enhancing prudence in managing and conducting business as a
listed company;

e A monthly reporting system on the performance of works
contracts, and actual financial performance results against
budgets to Management was well established. The Board
reviews the Company’s operation and financial performance on a
quarterly basis;
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e Management reviews with each division on monthly basis to ensure
that progress payments and final payments shall be received within
a reasonable time. In parallel, accounts department also issues a
summary of overdue trade receivable to each division regularly to
assist the divisional heads to chase all outstanding payments and
consequently to improve the Company cashflow position;

e The Board reviews, in particular, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experience of staff, training programme and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function as
required under the amended Listing Rules, which became effective
on 1 January 2009;

e The Audit Committee assesses and monitors the effectiveness of
internal control system in detecting fraud and other irregularities
by reviewing the work of the internal corporate audit department
and its findings; and

e The Company is aware of controlling price-sensitive information
and its obligations under the Listing Rules.

The Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control systems during the year ended 31 March 2009,
and considers them adequate and effective. Such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, risk management functions, and consideration of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

Risk Management

The Company has established an enterprise risk management
framework to identify potential events that may be affecting the
Company, to manage risks within its risk appetite and to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the Company’s
objectives. It comprises of three lines of defence to provide
Management, Audit Committee and the Board with the confidence
that the Company is managing its risks and they are:
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This enterprise risk management framework will enable the Company
to have the following potential benefits:

e Greater likelihood of achieving business objectives;

e Higher share prices over the longer term;

e Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting”;

¢ Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved;
e More focus internally on doing the right things properly;
e Better basis for strategy setting;

e Achievement of competitive advantage;

e Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and

e Early mover into new business areas.

Furthermore, the Company enhanced the tender estimating
procedures to identify, control and report on major tendering
and estimating risks, including unfamiliarised countries, nature of
works, buildabilities and technical feasibilities, changes in tender
requirements, unreasonable basis of costs analysis and insufficiency of
information for Management determining final tender sum.

Risk Assessment

During the year ended 31 March 2009, Management and internal
corporate audit department carried out the following risk assessment
exercises for the Company’s operations and their progress and findings
are reported to the Audit Committee of the Company quarterly:

e Setting the context of Company goals and objectives (financial as
well as non-financial) for our risk assessment process;

e Reviewing the Company’s key documentation policies and
procedures on strategic-management, core-business, and resource-
management processes;

e |dentifying, assessing and documenting the Company’s high-level
risks, including financial, operational and compliance aspects;

e Performing a walkthrough check of the high-level risks documented
in the risk registers to ascertain whether the control design was
effective in addressing the respective risk;

e |dentifying and documenting any deviations from the enterprise
risk-management framework and providing potential improvement
opportunities for any inconsistencies or gaps;

e Conducting technical field audit to help in locating lacunae and
deficiencies in site organisation structure and contract management
aspects; and

e Preparing an annual risk-based internal audit plan which details the
internal auditing works for the next fiscal year.
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Internal Audit

The independent internal corporate audit department monitors
compliance with management policies and procedures and with
regulatory requirements, and conducts testings on the effectiveness
of internal control measures. The head of the internal corporate audit
department reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Company
on audit and internal control matters. A full set of internal audit
reports will also be provided to the external auditor.

The majority of key operational controls have been tested for their
effectiveness by the internal corporate audit department and a review
of the internal control system will be performed at least annually.
The testing determines the extent to which operational procedures
and controls are being properly followed and implemented in the
Company. Based on the results of the tests, division heads are
able to prove to Management that internal controls are working
as intended or that necessary corrections have been made where
control weaknesses were found. Management has adopted all the
recommendations and established clear timelines for implementation.
Progress will be reported to the Audit Committee of the Company
and the Board on quarterly basis.

Using risk-assessment methodology and taking into account the
dynamics of the Company’s activities, the internal corporate audit
department delivers its annual audit plan for next fiscal year which
is approved by the Audit Committee of the Company. Under the
approved Internal Corporate Audit Charter by the Board, the internal
corporate audit department has unrestricted access to information and
complete freedom to draw independent conclusions in their audit.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
division heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed up,
in order to ensure that the risks are mitigated. Whilst the enterprise
risk-management framework is designed to identify and manage
risks that could adversely impact the achievement of the Company’s
business objectives, they do not provide absolute assurance against
misstatement, errors, losses or fraud.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

In order to enhance shareholder and investor understanding of the
Group’s business, the Company has established several communication
channels with shareholders and investors, including (i) printed copies
of corporate documents (including but not limited to annual reports,
interim reports, circulars and notices of shareholder meetings);
(ii) general meetings where shareholders can offer comments
and exchange views with the Board; (iii) the Company’s website:
www.pyengineering.com; and (iv) the Company’s share registrar with
whom shareholders register their shares.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company, where the Chairman of the Company, Directors, and the
external auditors are available to answer questions on the Group'’s
businesses. In order to conduct the general meetings in a transparent
manner, it has been the Company’s practice to conduct poll voting at
general meetings since 2005, way ahead of poll voting being made
mandatory for all general meetings effective on 1 January 2009.

The most recent shareholders’ meeting of the Company was the
annual general meeting held on 4 September 2008. Separate
resolutions were proposed for each substantive issue, including the re-
election of individual Director. Poll voting was adopted to ensure that
each share is entitled to one vote. The results of the poll voting have
been published on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The major items discussed were as follows:

e Payment of a final dividend of 5.5 HK cents per share for the year
ended 31 March 2008;

e Re-election of Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Ir Dr Wong Kam Cheong,
Stanley, Mr Cheung Lee Ming, Andy and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce as
Directors, and approval of the Directors’ fee;

e Re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s external auditors;

e General mandate to Directors to issue new shares in the Company,
not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital;

e General mandate to Directors to repurchase shares in the
Company, not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital; and

e Refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options under the share
option scheme.
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Details of the interests of Directors and shareholders in the shares of
the Company are shown on pages 42 and 52 of this annual report.

EERBERAARFBRMD 2 ESZRANERENER
$528

OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION
Memorandum and Articles of Association

There were no changes to the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association during the year ended 31 March 2009.

Key Corporate Dates

Events

E1H

Announcement of 2009 interim results
NE_TBTNFRHEE
Announcement of 2009 annual results
RE_ZTNF2EEE

2009 annual general meeting
CEENFREAFRE

Closure of register of members
TR ERR T L FE

Payment of 2009 final dividend

KN ZETNFRAKRE

HEuAmER

ARERAARAR
BE-_ZTZNFZA=Z+—BHLFER ARAA
BERAML MBI ESE) -

NEIEEAH

Dates

H &

12 December 2008
“EENF+-_A+-H
17 July 2009
—ZETNFLAT+EH
28 August 2009
—TEERFENAZTNR
16 to 18 September 2009
ZEENFNATABEZZTZAFAATNA
16 October 2009
—ZEZAF+H+TRAE

Public Float Capitalisation

The public float capitalisation of the Company was approximately
HK$54 million on 31 March 2009, and approximately HK$142 million B EI 2 2B # R E 5 54 A54,000,0007%

on the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entity at 31 March 2009 are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2009 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 57 of the annual report and in the accompanying
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the five largest customers and
the single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately
66% and 18% of the turnover of the Group, respectively. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group during the year were less than 30% of the purchases of the
Group.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors, their
associates, within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital have an interest in any of the five largest
customers of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet
its working capital requirements. At 31 March 2009, the Group’s
total bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$316,189,000
with approximately HK$268,225,000 repayable within one year,
approximately HK$42,993,000 repayable between one to two years
and approximately HK$4,971,000 repayable between two to five
years. Cash, bank balances and deposits at 31 March 2009 amounted
to approximately HK$441,824,000. The Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.22 and the Group’s total bank borrowings to equity
ratio was approximately 0.59 at 31 March 2009.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$20,493,000 on
property, plant and equipment to expand and upgrade its operating
capacity.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company

during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes and details of movements in
the share options of the Company and its holding company during the
year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2009 comprised the retained profits of HK$60,793,000
(2008: HK$85,784,000).
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)

Lee Chack Fan, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce

Non-Executive Director
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)

Executive Directors

Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley
(Chief Executive Officer)

Cheung Lee Ming, Andy
(Chief Financial Officer)

Mok Yat Fan, Edmond
(Chief Executive Officer)

Lee Hon Chiu

(appointed on 1 September 2008)

(appointed on 18 July 2008)

(resigned on 1 September 2008)

(resigned on 1 May 2008)

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Ir James Chiu and Professor Lee Chack Fan, retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring directors, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
approximately three years, and they are subject to retirement by
rotation under the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
At 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

“SFQ")), as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code”) in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EENBRG - AEROREFZEZRKXR

RZEZAF=ZA=+—H ARAEERFETET
BRABRARB S AR EE (E&EEHEH K
B0 ([#FHREBEGEG] E+RE0) 2l&Hm - 8
BRG REFTHARBEE S RBE K352
BEFEERARAIEZMAZ#ER AR - SRE L
MRAZ ERABESTETEFRR D 2 IR LT A
([ZESADMASITNE AR REBSH A2
R EKBIAT

() RARXRBRHRMEERG 2

Number of underlying
shares (in respect of the Approximate
Number of share options (unlisted percentage of
shares of the equity derivatives)) shareholding of
Name of director Capacity Long position ~ Company held of the Company held Total the Company
g NG
HER® (FEERE
FEAAR (#tmﬁ$ EARD T R E
EEpg 5% #E RGEE fTETIR))HA @it ZHBABDL
James Chiu Beneficial owner  Long position - 500,000 (note) 500,000 0.08%
ich 223 ERBmEA HE (Hiit)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficial owner  Long position - 500,000 (note) 500,000 0.08%
AER EnEAA e (Fiit)
Lee Chack Fan Beneficial owner  Long position - 500,000 (note) 500,000 0.08%
Fle% EnEAA e (Hiit)
lain Ferguson Bruce Beneficial owner  Long position 772,221 500,000 (note) 1,272,221 0.21%
EREEA e (Hist)

Note: The share options were granted to Ir James Chiu, Mr Lau Ko

Yuen, Tom, Professor Lee Chack Fan and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce

on 8 June 2007 under the share option scheme of the Company

adopted on 7 September 2005 and entitle each of them to

subscribe for 500,000 shares upon exercise at an exercise price

of HK$1.36 per share exercisable during the period from 1 July

2007 to 30 June 2009.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(b)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of PYI

EEZRRO - HRRORESZEERAR

(&)

(b) RREEEFRLB(PYL) 2RO KEER

Corporation Limited (“PYI1") 2R
Number of Number of
underlying underlying
shares shares
(in respect of (in respect
the share options  of the warrants Approximate
Number of (unlisted equity (listed equity percentage of
Long shares of derivatives)) derivatives)) shareholding
Name of director Capacity position PYI held of PYI held of PYI held Total of PYI
FrPYI FrPYI
MR A R4
(BEERE (EERRER
Fr¥EPYI GELmRAITE (@98 EPYIRE 2
EEpR 51 ¥R RAEE IH))8E fFTETR))&E @t BAEA
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficial owner  Long position 4,745,825 33,565,000 (note i) 790,970 (note ii) 39,101,795 2.59%
2SR ERmEA HE (Hiiti) (Hiiti)
Cheung Lee Ming, Andy Beneficial owner  Long position - 1,166,666 (note i) - 1,166,666 0.08%
RAIR BREAA HE (Hiatii)
Notes: Wit -
(i)  The share options were granted to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom under i) ZEBEREDREBEYIR-_ZZT_FNA

the share option scheme of PYI adopted on 27 August 2002 (“PYI
Share Option Scheme”). The said share options comprised:

(a

15,166,666 options granted to him on 28 December 2004
which entitle him to subscribe for a total of 15,166,666
shares upon exercise at the exercise prices of HK$1.0628
(as to 7,583,333 options) and HK$1.2857 (as to 7,583,333
options) per share exercisable during the period from 28
December 2004 to 26 August 2012;

5,366,667 options granted to him on 8 September 2006
which entitle him to subscribe for 5,366,667 shares upon
exercise at an exercise price of HK$2.1257 per share
exercisable during the period from 8 September 2008 to 7
September 2009;

AR BRRERT BI(TPYIB AR AR 1))
BPRsREL - DRBEEBE:

(a)

(b)

15,166,666 M — T T W F + = A
“TNEERTRBERE RERR
% $£15,166,666[K k0 * IR =ZFZE N
FE+ - A+ NHAE-_Z——FN\A
ZTHANBHMRITEESR0628E T
(H 7,583,333 FE IR #) 12 1.2857 % 7T
(EA7,583,3331p RE Bk ieE) 1715

5366,667MH_TERFNANBET
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
(b) Interests in shares and underlying shares of PYI

Corporation Limited (“PYI") (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(continued)

(©) 9,100,000 options granted to him on 18 September 2007
which entitle him to subscribe for a total of 9,100,000 shares
upon exercise at an exercise price of HK$3.0394 per share (as
to 4,550,000 options exercisable during the period from 18
September 2008 to 17 September 2009 and as to 4,550,000
options exercisable during the period from 18 September
2009 to 17 September 2010); and

(d) 3,931,667 options granted to him on 3 June 2008 which
entitled him to subscribe for a total of 3,931,667 shares
upon exercise at an exercise price of HK$1.7142 per share
exercisable during the period from 3 June 2008 to 2 June 2009.

The warrants were issued to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom on 26
September 2008 as a result of the payment of final dividend by PYI
for the year ended 31 March 2008 by way of warrants issue on the
basis of one warrant for every six existing shares (“Warrant Issue”)
held by him. The warrants entitle him to subscribe for 790,970
shares during the subscription period from 26 September 2008 to
25 September 2009 at an initial subscription price of HK$1.00 per
share.

The share options were granted to Mr Cheung Lee Ming, Andy on
3 June 2008 under the PYI Share Option Scheme and entitle him
to subscribe for 1,166,666 shares upon exercise at exercise prices
of HK$1.7142 per share (as to 583,333 options) exercisable during
the period from 3 June 2008 to 2 June 2009 and HK$2.1428 per
share (as to 583,333 options) exercisable during the period from 3
June 2009 to 2 June 2010.

PYI, the ultimate holding company of the Company, is an associated

corporation, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2009, none of the directors or

chief executives of the Company had any interest or short positions in

the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any

associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as

recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under

Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES
(@) The Company
i) Share option scheme
Details of movements in the share options of the Company
granted under the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 7 September 2005 during the year are as follows:

BARDHEER 2L

(a) &ATF
) FEREEE
FEARBAATR-_ZEETRENALH

PR BB R BB 2 AR
ZEBHIT

B P i

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of the share options

RERRERR FRT2ALAROHE

Exercise Outstanding  Re-classified  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Name/Capacity Date of price at during during during at
of eligible person grant  Vesting date Exercise period per share 1.4.2008 theyear  theyear  theyear  31.3.2009
RZBENE RZBENE
MA-H ZR=t-H
BERATES/ 50 RHAH L EE e SRORE AR FRENSE  FATE  FAAN HAAGR
HKS (Note 4)
AL (Hita)
Director
E%
James Chiu 86.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007 - 30.6.2009 136 500,000 - - - 500,000
BRs
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 8.6.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007 - 30.6.2009 1.36 500,000 - - - 500,000
BR
Lee Chack Fan 8.6.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007 - 30.6.2009 1.36 500,000 - - - 500,000
Eh
lain Ferguson Bruce 8.6.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007 - 30.6.2009 1.36 500,000 - - - 500,000
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond (Note 1)~ 13.7.2006 13.7.2006 13.7.2006 - 12.7.2008 1.00 214,000 - (214,000 - -
B0 (Wiitr) 13.7.2006 13.7.2007 13.7.2007 - 12.7.2009 1.00 1,500,000 - (1,300,000)  (200,000) -
13.7.2006 13.7.2008 13.7.2008 - 12.7.2009 1.00 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
Lee Hon Chiu (Note 2) 3.2.2006 3.2.2006 3.2.2006-6.9.2015 0.70 500,000 - (500,000) - -
TEH (W) 3.2.2006 1.1.2007 1.1.2007 - 6.9.2015 0.85 500,000 - (500,000) - -
3.2.2006 1.1.2008 1.1.2008- 6.9.2015 1.00 500,000 - (500,000) - -
Employees (Note 3) 9.2.2006 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 - 8.2.2009 0.90 2,800,000 (600,000)  (1,000,000)  (1,200,000) -
[E8 (W:t3) 30.5.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007 - 30.6.2008 134 1,500,000 (600,000) - (900,000) -
30.5.2007 1.7.2008 1.7.2008 - 30.6.2009 134 1,500,000 (600,000) - (900,000) -
30.5.2007 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 - 8.2.2009 134 9,500,000 - - (9,500,000) -
28.12.2007 1.9.2008 1.9.2008 - 31.8.2009 1.40 600,000 - - (600,000) -
Qther participants 9.2.2006 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 - 8.2.2009 0.90 - 600,000 - (600,000) -
Epak 30.5.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007 - 30.6.2008 134 - 600,000 - (600,000) -
30.5.2007 1.7.2008 1.7.2008 - 30.6.2009 134 - 600,000 - - 600,000
30.5.2007 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 - 8.2.2009 134 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) -
28.12.2007 1.6.2008 1.6.2008 - 31.5.2009 1.40 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
25,914,000 - (4,014,000) (18,300,000 3,600,000
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EERHMEE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continued)
(@) The Company (continued)

i)

i)

Share option scheme (continued)
Notes:

1. Resigned as director on 1 September 2008.
2. Resigned as director on 1 May 2008.

3. Employees working under employment contracts that were
regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purpose of the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

4. Certain persons ceased to work under employment contracts;
and accordingly, their share options were re-classified from
the category of “Employees” to the category of “Other
participants”.

No share options of the Company were granted or
cancelled during the year.

In respect of the 4,014,000 share options exercised
during the year, the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which
such options were exercised was HK$1.219.

Particular of share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share award scheme

This scheme, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows the Company to make bonus
payments to eligible persons (including employees,
directors, consultants, advisers and agents of the Group)
by way of the Company’s shares acquired by and held
through an independent trustee until fulfilment of specified
conditions before vesting.

None of the directors of the Company were awarded any
of the Company’s shares under this share award scheme
during the year or at 31 March 2009.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continued)
(@) The Company (continued)

BARDHEER 225 (F)

(@) =27 (&)

iii)  Share financing plan i) R EEE
This plan, which was adopted by the Company on 6 RABIR-_EENENLANNBERZT
September 2006, allows eligible persons (including HRAFEERALT(BREAEEZES -
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of 5 EE - ZRARREA) AARF
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a HAEBA—HARIBRUNEBRESR
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares ERERQRBHAERD > MEFERD
of the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject BEEHFAAGEAEKIER  HERFS
shares pledged to the Company as security subject always IR EHEEER S REMBEEX
to connected transaction and other relevant provisions ZHE -
under the Listing Rules.
None of the directors of the Company acquired any of the FRAFIR _ZEZAF=A=1+—8"#
Company'’s shares under this share financing plan during ERANREEREBELBROBETEESE
the year or at 31 March 20009. ERARREIRD
(b) PYI (b) PYI
i) Share option scheme D) FERREEZ
Details of movements in the share options of PYI granted FARRFBESRBEPYIR_ZZ_F)N
under the share option scheme of PYI adopted on 27 A=+t RNz BT SVER 2 PY
August 2002 to the directors of the Company during the BIREZEHEFOT
year are as follows:
Number of shares of PYI to be issued upon
exercise of the share options
RiTERRENSTRTZPYIRAHAE
Exercise Outstanding Granted lapsed  Adjusted Outstanding
Date of price per at during during during at
Name of director grant Vesting date Exercise period share  Note 1.4.2008 theyear  theyear  theyear  31.3.2009
R=ZBNE R=ZBNE
mMA-H =B=1-H
Esptf RHRY  BEAS ES  SRORE W HATE  FRRE  FRAM FRER HAORE
HKS (Note 5)
BT (Hi#s)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 28122004 28122004  28.12.2004 t0 26.8.2012 1.0628 4 6,500,000 - - 1083333 7,583,333
sk 28.12.2004  28.12.2004  28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012 1.2857 4 6,500,000 - - 1083333 7,583,333
8.9.2006 8.9.2007 8.9.2007 t0 7.9.2008 248 4,600,000 - (4,600,000) - -
8.9.2006 8.9.2008 8.9.2008 t0 7.9.2009 2.1257 4 4,600,000 - - 766,667 5,366,667
18.9.2007 189.2007  18.9.2007 t0 17.9.2008 3.546 3,900,000 - (3,900,000) - -
18.9.2007 189.2008  18.9.2008 t0 17.9.2009 3.03% 4 3,900,000 - - 650,000 4,550,000
18.9.2007 1892009  18.9.2009t0 17.9.2010 3.03% 4 3,900,000 - - 650,000 4,550,000
3.6.2008 3.6.2008 3.6.2008 t0 2.6.2009 1.7142 4 - 3,370,000 - 561,667 3,931,667
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond (Note 1) 8.9.2006 1.8.2007 1.8.2007 t0 31.7.2008 243 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - -
B (Hit1) 892006 (Note//#3)  1.8.2008031.7.2009 283 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - -
3.6.2008 3.6.2008 3.6.2008 t0 2.6.2009 1142 4 - 1,000,000  (1,166,666) 166,666 -
Cheung Lee Ming, Andy (Note 2) ~ 3.6.2008 3.6.2008 3.6.2008 t0 2.6.2009 17142 4 - 500,000 - 83,333 583,333
FAR Hi22) 3.6.2008 3.6.2009 3.6.2009t02.6.2010 2.1428 4 - 500,000 - 83,333 583,333
36,900,000 5,370,000 (12,666,666) 5,128,332 34,731,666
REFEFXEERRAT 2009F5k
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EEZRWMEE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continued)
(b) PYI (continued)

i)

ii)

Share option scheme (continued)
Notes:

1. Resigned as director on 1 September 2008.
2. Appointed as director on 18 July 2008.

3. As the vesting condition was not fulfilled, the share options
were not vested and were lapsed accordingly.

4. The range of exercise prices of the share options have been
adjusted from HK$1.24 and HK$3.546 to HK$1.0628 and
HK$3.0394 as a result of the Warrant Issue.

5. The number of share options has been adjusted as a result of
the Warrant Issue.

No share options of PYI granted to the above directors of
the Company were cancelled or exercised during the year.

Particulars of share option scheme of PYI are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share award scheme

This scheme, which was adopted by PYl on 23 February
2006, allows PYI to make bonus payments to eligible
persons (including employees, directors, consultants,
advisers and agents of PYI and its subsidiaries (“PYI
Group”)) by way of PYI's shares acquired by and held
through an independent trustee until fulfilment of specified
conditions before vesting.

None of the directors of the Company were awarded any
of PYI's shares under this share award scheme during the
year or at 31 March 2009.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) PYI (continued)

i) Share financing plan

This plan, which was adopted by PYI on 14 February 2006,
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the PYl Group) to
borrow funds from PYI or from a company within the PYI
Group to acquire new or old PYI's shares on a non-recourse
basis with the subject shares pledged to PYI as security
subject always to connected transaction and other relevant
provisions under the Listing Rules.

None of the directors of the Company acquired any of PYI's
shares under this share financing plan during the year or at
31 March 2009.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or holding company or any subsidiaries of the
Company’s holding company, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the directors,
chief executives or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
None of the directors of the Company is interested in any business

apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group
during the year or at 31 March 2009.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

BARDHEER 225 (F)
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EERHEE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 1 March 2007, the Company and PYI entered into a conditional
business services agreement (”Original Business Services Agreement”)
for the period from 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2010 with the annual
cap amounts of HK$60 million, HK$80 million and HK$100 million
for the financial years ended/ending 31 March 2008, 2009 and
2010 respectively. The entering into of the Original Business Services
Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of which
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 15 March 2007.

On 23 April 2008, the Company and PYI entered into a conditional
business services agreement (“Business Services Agreement”) to adjust
the annual cap amounts to HK$250 million and HK$350 million for
each of the two financial years ended/ending 31 March 2009 and
2010 respectively and to set the annual cap amount at HK$500 million
for the financial year ending 31 March 2011. The entering into of
the Business Services Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of which were set out in the circular of the Company dated 14
May 2008 (“Circular”).

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
with a subsidiary of PYI, which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” or “connected transactions” under the Listing Rules.
Details of such transactions are as follows:

BFERERS
ZETLF=A—H " AARHEPYIRIZEEHE
HhRSHE((REBRGHE])  FHAZTZ L
FHA—HBEZZT-—TF=-A=1+—RH #HEZ
TENF ZEENFRZE-ZF=A=+—
HIEMBEFE 2 FE LR A %60,000,0007% 7T
80,000,0007% 7T & 100,000,000 7T ° 7] 37 :Z JR 2 7%
IR EX EMARBEUVABSE I ARR ZBE
BERXD - RGABFHERARABRAAZTELF
—“At+ERAZ@EK -

RZZEZNEWNA=+=H" ARRIEPYIFIVLE
U EBREHE ((EBRBHED  $BE-F
EANER T ZTFE-ZA=Z+—HILMEATRFE
E&F2FE LR 55§ % %250,000,0007% T &
350,000,000/ ' WEEE-_T——F=A=+—
H B B 8 2 2 _E IR 7 /%500,000,00078 7T © 1R
BEMBAFBUAZEZIRTE ST ZEBRBE HE
BRARNT ZISBHRERS - FBEHN AT HH
AEZET)\FERATHAZEE(EH]) -

FA-REBEPYIET —HEMBRREITTIRS
BETRRABETZ[HEREXS I BEXS] -
BERXSHZFHBWT

Name of party Nature of transaction Amount
REHER RHME HE
HK$’'000
FHET
PYI Xingdong Properties (Jiangsu) Project and facilities management fees charged by the Group 4,251
Limited (“PYI Xingdong”) REBWEIER REHEERE
REMREZECOIH) ARAA Construction works charged by the Group 108,214
(TMREHR]) AEBKRDMEHNTIREE
Interest charged by the Group 11,373
2N 5 [ N2,
123,838

PYI Xingdong is an associate, within the meaning of the Listing Rules,

RERRSETRAUMAERARREZRRPYIZ

of PYI, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr Lau Ko Yuen, BaNE KRR EFERREEMABPYIZES -

Tom, a director of the Company, is also a director of PYI.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors of
the Company engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of the continuing connected
transactions of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Related Services 4400 "Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon
Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, to assist the independent
non-executive directors of the Company to evaluate whether such

transactions:

(i)  have received the approval of the board of directors of the
Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group with reference to similar transactions with
independent third parties;

(iii) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant cap amount for the year ended
31 March 2009 as set out in the Circular.

The auditor of the Company have reported their factual findings
on these procedures to the board of directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company, have reviewed
and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions as set out
above have been entered into:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available from
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company, as a whole.
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EERHEE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN THE
REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

At 31 March 2009, so far as is known to the directors and the chief

executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the

substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the Company

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Q)]

Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company

REBEESRBEFRHE3B6HKFE =M
e T ERR HMA L 2 BHERK

mp

RZZBTZNF=ZA=+—HB BARREETLRE2

THRABMA  REESEMERDIFE3B6HFFE

Z$AT pracsk e T2RER,Hi A LR
RElZ Ry RARRD 2 BEIORBIT -

() EZERRRAQXFARGREERS 2 #ES

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares of the shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity Long position Company held of the Company
PR AR E 1EAD R RE
BREREHE E17) L3} BRAEE ZHRBE D
PYI Interest of controlled Long position 375,826,317 62.36%
corporation (Note) e
REZRES 2 #Ew (Wat)
PYI Treasury Group Limited ("PYIT") Interest of controlled Long position 375,826,317 62.36%
corporation (Note) e
REZRES 2 #Ew (Wat)
Growing Success Limited Interest of controlled Long position 375,826,317 62.36%
("Growing Success”) corporation (Note) 55
REZRES 2 #w (Wit)
Paul Y. Investments Limited (“PYIL") Beneficial owner (Note) Long position 375,826,317 62.36%
EmBEAAN (B e
CIM Dividend Income Fund Limited Investment manager Long position 61,347,869 10.18%

REZE

R

Note:

PYIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Growing Success which is in turn

a wholly-owned subsidiary of PYIT. PYIT is a wholly-owned subsidiary of

PYI. Growing Success, PYIT and PYI are deemed to be interested in the

shares of the Company held by PYIL.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN THE
REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO
(continued)

(2

Interests of other persons in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

RERSRBERHIEI6MHFE 2 E LM
e T ERR HMA L 2 BHERK
7 (&)

(2) HEttALRAQXRROREEARS 2 #EH

Number of
underlying Approximate
Number of shares (unlisted percentage of
shares of the equity derivatives) shareholding of
Name of person Capacity Long position ~ Company held  of the Company held Total the Company
g% NN
RSN HERG GELT 1672 R RE
HipATHE BB E=27) ) BRH#E RAETTEIR)HAE BE ZBNESH
Mr Daniel Saul Och Interest of controlled ~ Long position 39,058,875 2,796,273 41,855,148 6.94%
corporation (Note) 118
WREHEE 2 #R
(Hizt)
Och-Ziff Capital Interest of controlled  Long position 39,058,875 2,796,273 41,855,148 6.94%
Management Group corporation (Note) 12
LLC ("Och-Ziff Capital”) ~ WEHEHIEEZ
(Hizt)
0Z Management, L.P. Investment manager  Long position 39,058,875 2,796,273 41,855,148 6.94%
("0Z Management”) (Note) e
RERE (W3t)
0Z Master Fund, Ltd Beneficial owner (Note) Long position 36,185,257 2,278,837 38,464,094 6.38%
("OZ Master") ExBBEANE) 9R
Platinum Global Dividend Investment manager  Long position 36,000,000 - 36,000,000 5.97%
Fund Limited KA He

Note: OZ Master was a fund managed by OZ Management. Och-Ziff
Holding Corporation (“Och-Ziff Holding”) was the sole general
partner of OZ Management, and Och-Ziff Capital was in turn the
sole shareholder of Och-Ziff Holding. Mr Daniel Saul Och controlled
approximately 79.1% of the voting power at general meetings
of Och-Ziff Capital. OZ Management, Och-Ziff Holding, Och-ziff
Capital and Mr Daniel Saul Och were deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by OZ Master and other funds
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2009, the Company has not
been notified of any interests or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Htit © OZ Master/50Z Managementf & 12 ~
% ° Och- Ziff Holding Corporation ([ Och-Ziff
Holding]) &0Z ManagementM ——f& & %
A+ MOch-Ziff CapitalBll &0Qch-Ziff Holding
2 M — % 3R  Daniel Saul Och %t 4 7 Och-Ziff
Capital i W K& £ 12§ £979.1% K SR 1 o
R E S RHE B - 0Z Management +
Och-Ziff Holding * Och-Ziff Capital &2Daniel
Saul Och %t 4 #2 18 /& 7 F1 OZ Master J2 H b
BEeBEZ2ARARARGO R #ER

BEXPEEEN R_BEAF=A="+—
B RIEESMAE R FE3B6EARBIAER
EZERMALE  ARriEEMSEHM
ATHBERRBZ D RBBERO Z R
KA e

REZEXEEHRAT 2009F 1R
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Directors’ Report

EEZRWMEE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company complied with all code provision and, where applicable,
adopted the recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2009.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 21 to 38 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2009 as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$2,680,000.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-

appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

James Chiu, OBE, JP
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 145,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

B ZBENRE S

BREREEBERLRDZERR
(EEREZEAME L HRAAE])

AZEMITE T ERESTEE L1458 R E
EEEEAERAR(TERRD REWMB AR (5
[EEE]) 2HEMBHRE BER_FTNE=
A=+—RZGREEABRRBEZRALFEZ
HENER SREEZEDRMEARERBK
AR ERETHRME R E M ARRENGE

ESHGaMBERARBEZEE

BERRERRABARBEESHMASEMZEE
MBRELINEERB ARG 2 WEERGHELE
BEMAFIREE P HRE - ERERERE
B kE#ERAEL AR AT RS MR
RN AL IEFEVBERR TS FEH
REFFERMERMME R R R - BB EA
HEENGBER  URRAEBAELEENG
ate

BBz EE
AZBEITHEERRBEAZBENITEZ TENG
R HHEEMBHRRELER  URRARERA
EFEGINMRTE - ERBERRME  FRULIAIN -
AZBETEREE DA AELMAE - N BED
IHTRAREENAST - HEMEMATERER
EEEREME - AZBETORETESAAE
BT BRI EAETER - BLEAZRARK
HENITETERAE  URBRNTER UG8
BERAMBRRES T B EMEAHERERML -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B HRES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2009
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

IVT\

BlER

For the year ended 31 March 2009 &% —EE/NF=H=+—HILFZF

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
b FHET FAT
Turnover LR 7 4,427,216 4,913,022
Cost of sales BHEMAR (4,230,966) (4,679,141)
Gross profit EA 196,250 233,881
Other income EH A 9 31,213 39,377
Administrative expenses 1T E (170,462) (166,759)
Finance costs BhE PR A 10 (18,924) (9,405)
Gain on disposal of an associate o — Rl A B2 ks - 3,459
Share of results of associates b2 LN 149 29,118
Share of results of jointly controlled entities {5t [E 12 fil s 248 743 59
Profit before tax MR ER B A 38,969 129,730
Income tax expense FriSti 2 A 12 (2,960) (9,747)
Profit for the year FEm 13 36,009 119,983
Attributable to: LATR A e -
Equity holders of the Company RATZEHFEA 40,218 119,479
Minority interests DEIRR R (4,209) 504
36,009 119,983
Dividends BB 14 33,072 53,381
Earnings per share FREA 15
Basic B HK cents 6.7l HK cents 20.27(l
Diluted B HK cents 6.734l  HK cents 20.071ll
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meBEERER

At 31 March 2009 R=FEZENFE=H=+—H

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
g FTHET FHTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e T NG 16 42,019 33,061
Prepaid land lease payments TR T E IR 17 21,41 21,986
Goodwill GEES 18 64,343 63,969
Other intangible assets HEtmmpEE 19 7,565 7,240
Interests in associates iGN S 20 68,019 70,406
Interests in jointly controlled entities KA EEER 21 2,730 1,987
Available-for-sale investments Tf HEZIKE 22 341 343
Deferred consideration receivable FENGEIERAE 23 - 2,863
206,428 201,855
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid land lease payments T T E IR 17 575 575
Amounts due from customers EREFEL
for contract works TI2FI8 24 196,776 201,589
Trade and other debtors, B 5 I H A FEURIR
deposits and prepayments ‘ET%&?EN;" 25 1,348,582 1,703,091
Amounts due from related companies FEULFAsE A Rl k1A 26 12,618 1
Amounts due from associates FEUR ’y‘%*.g*’& /T;)\IE 27 58,373 43,762
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity — FEUR—FEl F£ A% %lﬁﬁé% 27 4 4
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEU B ZFf 8 A RIFK 27 97,937 9,135
Loan receivable FEME TR 28 30,000 -
Investments held for trading FHEEERE 29 199 =
Taxation recoverable AR EH R - 3,261
Pledged bank deposits B IRITIE K 30 65,299 34,269
Short term bank deposits EHEISRITER 30 176,698 377,045
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIR S 30 199,827 58,168
2,186,888 2,430,900
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2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MosE FExT FAET
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Amounts due to customers EREEEH
for contract works TI2FI8 24 737,098 804,442
Trade and other creditors and B 5 M EAESTRIER
accrued expenses FEETRA 31 778,231 1,059,334
Amounts due to related companies FERTRA:E A EIFRIA 26 1,613 33
Amounts due to associates A RE NCIE | 27 2,573 609
Amounts due to minority shareholders FES D BRAR R RIR 27 35 1,041
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE1SI[R) 2t B 2 ) 5K 0E 27 - 10,515
Taxation payable i ANE R 7,889 15,173
Bank borrowings — due within one year —FREEZ RITER 32 268,225 197,715
1,795,664 2,088,862
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 391,224 342,038
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERTE
LIABILITIES aE 597,652 543,893
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year —F BB IRITIERK 32 47,964 5,947
549,688 537,946
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR G
Share capital f& A 34 301,339 298,649
Reserves EE 235,476 225,114
Equity attributable to equity holders KRR Z =B ARG
of the Company e ms 536,815 523,763
Minority interests DB R M A 12,873 14,183
TOTAL EQUITY Mg 549,688 537,946

The financial statements on pages 57 to 145 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 July 2009 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley

=R

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

BT TEFERTTE AR

BNESTBEEFISBEZYERRERZEZENTFE
tAt+EtREEERKAERBETZE YA TIE

FRREFREFT

Cheung Lee Ming, Andy

Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

RAER

BT TEFER YT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Z S\ o

W_J_\ 1;""2:"2.

EIES

For the year ended 31 March 2009 B{Z —FEZENF=H=—+—HIFZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AATRERAAES

Investment Share

Share Share  Special revaluation  option Translation  Retained Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Sub-total interests Total
RE  ERE 2%
ke RGEE HARG EHEE fie EXRE REEA Nt BRER it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér Thr TR  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TiEn
At 1 April 2007 RZTELERA-A 294800 273728  (153,767) 343 981 417 25614 442,116 1280 454936
Exchange difference arising from HENEEHEE,
translation of foreign aperations EiER - - - - - 1313 - 1313 = 1313
Decrease in fair value of avallable-forsale WALt E ZREATE
investments Ay - - - (389) - - - (389) - (389)
Share of translation reserve of an associate & —BENAEH FiE - - - - - 3% - 336 - 336
Net (expense) income recognised directly ~ E#IMEGFBRA L (F%)
in equity LON:E: - - - (389) - 164 - 1260 - 1260
Profit for the year ERgT - - - - - - 119479 119479 504 119983
Reserve released upon disposal of HE-FREAT
an associate A - - - - - 1023 - 1023 - 1023
Total recognised (expense) income EEER (FX) KA
for the year gz = = = (389) - 2602 119479 121,762 504 122,266
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ BERALAR(R AR 2
payment expenses NEREE - - - - 4,697 - - 4,697 = 4,697
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RENRR 53]
scheme kb 2206 (2,200 = = = = = = = =
Issue of shares upon exercise of RiTRREREN
share options BRH 1,643 1,591 - - (398) - - 2,83 = 283
Credit arising on scrip dividends WRKEEEZER - - - - - - 5733 5733 - 5733
Dividends declared and paid EERRZMARE - - - - - - (53381)  (53381) - (53381)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B FAERERS = = = = = = = - (2563 (2563)
Contribution from minority shareholders ~ PEURRILE - - - - - - - - 342 342
At 31 March 2008 R=FE\F=A=1-H 298649 273113 (153,767) (46) 5,280 3,089 97445 523,763 14,183 537946
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

LG SN
Investment Share
Share Share  Special revaluation  option Translation  Retained Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Sub-total interests Total
RE  ERE 2%
ke RGEE HARG EHEE fie EXRE REEA Nt REEE it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér Thr TR  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEr TEr TiEn
Fichange difference arising from BENEEREE
translation of foreign operations EXZR - - - - - 63 - 63 - 63
Decrease in fair value of available-forsale W& ZREATFE
investments 0 - = = ) = = = 2) = 2
Share of translation reserve of associates  EE/EBE AT e - - - - - 916 - 916 - 916
Net (expense) income recognised directly ~ ERRNERERZ (F%)
in equity WAFE - - - )] - 979 - 977 - 977
Profit (oss) for the year EEaf(ER) - - - - - - 40218 40218 (4209) 36,009
Total recognised (expense) income EEER(FLD) KA
for the year @z - - - ) - 979 40,218 41,195 (4209 36,986
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BRI BER 2
payment expenses NHEREE - - - - 436 - - 436 - 43
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RENRR S5
scheme Bkl 683 (683) = = - - - - = =
Issue of shares upon exercise of RirieEhiEm
share options kb 2,007 2,266 - - (584) - - 3689 - 3689
Effect of share aptions lapsed BRMERE Y2 - - - - (@9 - 4291 = = =
Credit arising on scrip dividends RS EEZER - - - - - - 804 804 - 804
Dividends declared and paid EERRZRE - - - - - - BMm M - (33m)
Acquisition of additional interest in WE—RHERRZ
asubsidiary BiMER - - - - - - - - (79) (795)
Contribution from minarity shareholders ~ PEREHE - - - - - - - - 3,694 3,694
At 31 March 2009 RZTENE=A=1-H 301339 2746%  (153,767) (48) 8341 4068 109,686 536,815 12873 549,688
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

The special reserve of the Group includes the following:

(a)

a credit amount of HK$1,000,000 representing the difference
between the cost of acquisition of two subsidiaries and the
nominal amount of their share capital at the date on which
they were acquired by Paul Y. Management Contracting
Group Limited (“Paul Y. Management Contracting”) before
the reverse acquisition as mentioned in note (b) below; and

a debit amount of HK$154,767,000 representing the reserve
arising from the reverse acquisition of Paul Y. Management
Contracting and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Paul
Y. Management Contracting Group”), net of refund from
ex-shareholder of Paul Y. Management Contracting for the
shortfall in net asset value of Paul Y. Management Contracting
Group upon completion of the acquisition by the Company
from PYI Corporation Limited, the ultimate holding company,
of the entire equity interest in, and shareholders’ loan to Paul
Y. Management Contracting Group in January 2005.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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(a)

— 22 /3 801,000,000/ 7T 2 # Bz - BN EE ™
1 BT 8 A ) 2 B S 27 A B /B 8 )RR T Bt
AR BB RREERIREERS
2 2 &) ([Paul Y. Management Contracting )
WHEER ZRAEHEBECHNZERE &

— % /3 81154,767,000% 7T 2 f8 &2 5K - BN
[z W B&Paul Y. Management Contracting
K B & 2 &1 ( 4% 48 [Paul Y. Management
Contracting Group) E 4 Z & & - W R
Paul Y. Management ContractingAfj B% 5 & 7
RARZZERF— ATKARLZERA A
REEL B AR 2 AU AEPaul Y. Management
Contracting Group 2 3 AR N4 #5 & IR R B 3K
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BEFEIRMIAM RN -



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AaRenER

For the year ended 31 March 2009 &% —EE/NF=H=+—HILFZF

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before tax R Al A 38,969 129,730
Adjustments for: BLTNZIIEE EITHE
Depreciation of property, YIZE - MR
plant and equipment REZITE 9,401 8,670
Finance costs BhE KA 18,924 9,405
Impairment loss recognised for ERRE S Lk HEMEKRIEZ
trade and other debtors HEEE 745 234
Release of prepaid land lease payments EEEN LA ERIA 575 575
Share-based payment expenses LARGAD RN TR 2 B 436 4,697
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets & B B EE 2 [B1E 45 =
Interest income FESA (31,213) (39,377)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities {5 X E R HIH B LA (743) (59)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEYIZE « W REREZ
plant and equipment (Wez=) BB (200) 49
Share of results of associates RS N R EE (149) (29,118)
Gain on changes in fair value of T—r{’EE%&éZ
investments held for trading NEEEE WS (33) =
Gain on disposal of an associate & — RS A Rz W - (3,459)
Operating cash flows before movements Rt BEESEBAIZ
in working capital BEEBBRSRE 36,757 81,347
Decrease (increase) in trade and o RHMEWRIE  5FTe &k
other debtors, deposits and prepayments TR IR A (3 0) 377,455 (18,853)
Increase in amounts due from FEUR R 2T B8 A &)
fellow subsidiaries FIEE N (88,802) (168)
Change in amounts due from (to) customers J"?ﬂlﬁl (H) EFAHTIIE
for contract works, net of attributable ~ FIBE BE) - WHKRERTFE
interest expenses and depreciation Eﬁi'ili?ﬁ& (59,552) (209,435)
Increase in amounts due from associates f”ﬂlﬂﬁﬁ%’& Iﬁi"j]l] (14,611) (19)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from JE Y Bl i K38 (32 n)
related companies A (12,617) 431
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to JE (Tt i N B BRI AN
associates (/WQ\) 1,964 (792)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to JEfT A& SRIAE N
related companies 02 ) 1,580 (2,873)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 N Hoh FE ST FRIE K FEET R 2
creditors and accrued expenses CRiA») 20 (261,600) 212,511
Decrease in amounts due to R e NGIER
fellow subsidiaries A (5,098) (572)
Decrease in amount due to a minority FE DB R SRIR
shareholder A (1,006) =
Increase in investments held for trading FEBE BEREE N (166) =
Decrease in amount due from a jointly JEU — il 2k R 2R il i i e
controlled entity Ve - 6
Cash (used in) generated from operations ~ (FAR) REKEEK 2EE (25,696) 61,583
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EREFBFEH 1,653 21
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EBAEH - (593)
Overseas tax paid BEEINMRIA (8,636) (5,822)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING (FHR)REKLEEK >
ACTIVITIES HEREE (32,679) 55,189

REZEEEERAF 200955

63



64

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

REREREFK

For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BasE FExT Tt

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Repayment of loans receivable U El e E R 24,000 -
Interest received 2 UF S 8,799 9,805
Dividends received from associates [SEE LN 5,762 88,250
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYIZ - R EE

plant and equipment FriS /18 365 44
Proceeds from disposal of other & Bt A

intangible assets FrfS5008 30 -
Increase in loans receivable JEUR B FRIE A0 (54,000) =
(Increase) decrease in pledged bank deposits & #1777 7k (38 hn) J5 > (31,160) 8,332
Payment for consideration payables Wi — = A AR 2

on acquisition of interest in an associate EARE (20,071) =
Additions to property, plant and equipment  NE ¥ - AR KRR (20,493) (8,500)
Additional contribution to an associate A — B N B FEINE & (2,310) =
Acquisition of additional interests in WEE—FNB ARz

a subsidiary FHHMERS 36 (800) =
Additions to other intangible assets WEEHEMET &= (400) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash W BT B8 2 B (FIBR AT A 2

and cash equivalents acquired He hEREEEER) 36 (369) (1,792)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — B & A B FT1S 5K IR - 8,860
Acquisition of interest in an associate Wi —ME e N e 2 - (4,756)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING (FAR)REREXEK

ACTIVITIES HeFE (90,647) 100,243
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
New bank loans raised FERITER 300,078 136,482
Contribution from minority shareholders VEIREE 3,694 3,422
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise 7 T{E A% HE M 21T 2

of share options FriS5008 3,689 2,836
Repayment of bank loans EERITREN (191,546) (138,293)
Dividends paid B E (32,268) (47,648)
Interest paid BEAFLE (19,272) (9,820)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BT O EPTERIE - (2,563)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING B (AR) MEZFE 2

ACTIVITIES HEFE 64,375 (55,584)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReRERESEEER (BY)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B nEEE (58,951) 99,848
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ExSE

CHANGES e 263 421
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT R& R IR & Z(E

FORWARD 18 B A& Al 435,213 334,944
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED BE&RHERLZE

FORWARD BERZE 376,525 435,213
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH H&RHEBRSZEEE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD AT
Short term bank deposits FEHEISRITER 176,698 377,045
Bank balances and cash RITERKIAE 199,827 58,168

376,525 435,213
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate holding company is Paul Y. Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
company is PYI Corporation Limited (“PYIl"”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporation Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entity
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

—REHR
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERAFHTRKBERZEBUKRELEL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (TEEBBMBHREER ] (&)
(continued)

AEEYEIEF AT EBMGIERRER L
#a] RAEER] - BT R -

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued

66

but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs' ERMBREER (BE]) BRI R
B!
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20092 BB IS REER (18] —EENFEFBY

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial
Statements®

Borrowing Costs®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements*

BFREGENR 1% (BEX)

FR G ERFE235% (K2
ER G ERFE275% (B2

RS £ R 2 BUE?
BHEERZ 25

fig & AR
R A R MR 8 7 R

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments ERHeERER R AEESMIAR
(Amendments) and Obligations Arising (1837) BEROEZEE

on Liguidation?

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items* BB ERE395% (B7T) Aﬁ%?ﬂiqﬂlﬁ B4
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a AU REERE 157 RITB AR« £RE
(Amendments) Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled REASHENE 275 %'J%Tﬁiﬁﬁ?‘é’/}—l
Entity or Associate? (183T) PN
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions B REERIE 25, B2 (o S ks
and Cancellations? (183T)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations* BB IR R E 35 EBA B
(&%)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures A REERFETH RMTEREIN
about Financial Instruments? (1&3T)
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments? BRI BREERESH a3
HK(FRIC) — Int 9 & HKAS 39 Embedded Derivatives® &5 (BB iR & 48 BRARITE
(Amendments) REZE®)
~REFREE
SR ERIE395R (1B7])
HK(IFRIC) = Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes® 76 (BB B 7 &5 4 | BE ATl
ABZEQ)-REE 135
HK(IFRIC) = Int 15 Agreements for the & (BB o s 28 FEHERER R
Construction of Real Estate? REZEE) -REZE15%
HK(FRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment &5 (BB R £ BINERAR B F 5
in a Foreign Operation’ ZEZEE)-2EBE 165 Y7
HK(FRIC) = Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets 5 (BB iR 48 A ADRFERS
to Owners* REZEE)-REE TR BE
HK(FRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from &5 (BB iR & 48 BERPEZEEE®
Customers? REZEE)-REZE18%
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009,
1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
g Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 April 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values, and in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefit from its activities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS
3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal
groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”, which are recognised and measured at fair value
less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land are
accounted for as operating leases and are stated initially at cost
and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Goodwill
Gooawill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations
of another entity for which the agreement date is before 1
January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of
acquisition. For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions of net assets and operations of another entity or
a jointly controlled entity after 1 January 2001, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 April 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEHBERGE@E

Goodwill (continued) e (E)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005 R-EERF—H—Ha{ZE#E7TTZWKBEESL
Z B

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the WX (B AR -2 F— A —H

agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for

KK MELEZEBTIEWBRAE LA E
BIEKERMEREEGAIBRAEERRERT
BZZ5 » R BRI REHREBE
FIER

RERRME - WEMEL ZEETIR K
IEFHELRSEN  ELRSBEM A
Al RSBz HRMES Xam - D&
DEMEBZELRCBEUESFRAEME A
HEREZBREETRER - LR @R

impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that REEZWEMEE 2 HENS  EESER
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition BUEXRSBURZYEETAERETR
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill BHE - 2EARESBEM 2 kE£2ELRZ
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of BAuZEREE AREBEETOER  BIRE

that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, goodwill
was calculated as the difference between the cost of additional
interest acquired and the Group’s additional share of the carrying
amount of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interest that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant associate.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interest that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in jointly controlled entities (continued)

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of
the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity.

3.

FEGFEE (&)
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Other intangible assets Hitt B\ &EE
On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately, other RERERE  BREEDBALBA(TEE

than from business combinations, are recognised at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. After initial recognition, other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and other intangible assets
other than goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. In addition, other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance
sheet date. Variations in contract work and claims are included
to the extent that they have been agreed with customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that they have been agreed with the
customer. Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the excess is shown as
amount due from a customer for contract work. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the excess is shown as amount
due to a customer for contract work. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
balance sheet, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are
included in the consolidated balance sheet under trade and
other debtors, deposits and prepayments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
value of work certified during the year.

Project management service income and facilities management
service income are recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive the relevant payment has been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense or capitalised in contracts in progress,
where appropriate, when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and jointly controlled entity, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part
of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value,
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when the group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"). All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial asset at FVTPL includes financial asset held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. TEEIEEK(E)
Financial instruments (continued) T A ()
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including deferred
consideration receivable, trade and other debtors, amounts due
from related companies, associates, a jointly controlled entity and
fellow subsidiaries, loan receivable, pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in equity is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets such as debtors, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other creditors, amounts
due to related companies, associates, minority shareholders
and fellow subsidiaries and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to employees of the Group after 7
November 2002, the fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At
each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of share options expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year:
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(a) Deferred tax asset
At 31 March 2009, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to unused tax losses of approximately
HK$414,200,000 (2008: HK$410,877,000) in the
consolidated balance sheet due to unpredictability of future
profit streams (note 33). In cases where future profits are
expected to be generated, a deferred tax asset may be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit on a
construction contract according to the management's
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of completion of construction works.
Notwithstanding that the management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
construction contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and this
will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in note 32 and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6a.

6b.

6. &@ITH

Categories of financial instruments 6a. ©RITAEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAT
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL EBEATEFABE EREE
Investments held for trading BHIEEERE 199 =
Loans and receivables (including B R EWFIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BiEReEESEEER) 1,937,354 2,193,159
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 341 343
1,937,894 2,193,502
Financial liabilities THaE
Amortised cost B A 1,048,297 1,226,048

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments
held for trading, available-for-sale investments, deferred
consideration receivable, trade and other debtors, amounts
due from related companies, associates, a jointly controlled
entity and fellow subsidiaries, loan receivable, pledged bank
deposits, short term bank deposits, bank balances, trade
and other creditors, amounts due to related companies,
associates, minority shareholders and fellow subsidiaries
and bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

6b.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risks

(i)  Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Group have trade and other
debtors, pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits, bank balances, trade and other creditors,
amounts due from associates and amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries denominated in foreign currency
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
as at the reporting date are as follows:

Assets BE
Renminbi ARE
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SBPIEE ( [BRPI%] )

United States dollar (“USD") x5t ([ZEx])

Liabilities =0
Renminbi AR
MOP SRFTEE

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of
the Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar as Hong
Kong dollar is pegged to the other two foreign
currencies, namely MOP and USD. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars. 5%
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
indicates an increase in profit where Renminbi
strengthens 5% against Hong Kong dollars. For a 5%
weakening of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit for the year, the balances below would be
negative.
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2009 2008
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risks (continued)

(i

(ii)

Currency risk (continued)

Increase in profit Iyl

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on trade and other debtors, amounts due from
associates, bank balances, trade and other creditors
and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries denominated
in Renminbi at the balance sheet date.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to other debtors, loan receivable, bank
deposits and variable-rate bank borrowings (see
note 25, 28, 30, 32 for details respectively). It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at variable-rate
of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly attributable to fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR"”) and benchmark
lending interest rate as announced by the People’s
Bank of China.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for loan
receivable, bank deposits, other debtors and variable-
rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared on
the balance at balance sheet date. A 50 basis points
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

6.

ST H (48)
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45 B ()
() EEERE)
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risks (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2009 would increase/decrease by HK$2,672,000
(2008: increase/decrease by HK$2,473,000) in respect
of the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on its
loan receivable, bank deposits and other debtors.

Furthermore, if interest rate had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 March 2009 would decrease/increase
by HK$1,284,000 (2008: decrease/increase by
HK$840,000) in respect of the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

(iii) ~ Other price risk
The Group’'s equity instruments (classified as
investments held for trading and available-for-sale
investments) expose the Group to equity price risks. In
the opinion of management, the Group’s equity price
risk in relation to its investments held for trading and
available-for-sale investments is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet and the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in
note 40.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual debtor at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Due to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers and
significant concentration of credit risk by geographic
location in Hong Kong. In view of their credit standings,
good payment record in the past and long term
relationships with the Group, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is not material. At
the balance sheet date, the outstanding balances from
the five largest customers amounted to approximately
HK$445,214,000 (2008: HK$865,154,000) in aggregate, of
which the single largest customer represent approximately
12% (2008: 21%) of the total debtors at the balance sheet
date.

The Group has advances together with interest thereon
to a non-trade debtor which is included in trade and
other debtors, deposit and prepayments, amounting to
approximately HK$241,756,000 as at 31 March 2009
(2008: HK$222,722,000) (see note 25 for details) which
expose the Group to the concentration of credit risk on
this single counterparty. In view that the balance is secured
by property interests in the People’s Republic of China and
that the market value is higher than the carrying amount
of the outstanding balance, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s exposure to credit risk on this
balance is reduced.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group has loan receivable amounting to
HK$30,000,000 as at 31 March 2009 (note 28) from an
independent third party which also exposed the Group
to credit risk. The directors of the Company continue to
monitor and assess the financial status of the counterparty,
and they believe the exposure to credit risk on this balance
is not significant as the counterparty is a company listed
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and is of good financial
position.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

With respect to credit risk and concentration risk arising
from amounts due from a jointly controlled entity, fellow
subsidiaries, associates and related companies, the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparties is limited as the counterparties have good
reputation and a good history of repayment and the Group
does not expect to incur a significant loss for uncollected
amounts due from these counterparties.

Other than above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparty.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance its operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2009, the Group had available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately HK$329
million (2008: HK$547 million). Details of the amounts
utilised at the balance sheet date are set out in Note 32.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SETAGE)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. ©RIAMEREHERBER (&)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) HEE LR ()
TRAMAEEHFETESCHBELEDN
E|HAE - R IBBEAEE ] g ER(E
B EFEHzeMEBERMBER SR
ERE - ZEXMEENE  TEELrEE

The following table details the Group's contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both ERE °
interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 91 days - Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 90 days 1 year Tyear  cash flow amount
MERH RERAS
BRAZ  90BMA 9BE-F -ENUE  REEE RAEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TATL TAT TAT TR
At 31 March 2009 R=2BNEF=A=t-H
Trade and other creditors B REMENIE - 549,125 104,685 74077 721887 727,887
Amounts due to related companies ERBEARTIE - 1613 - - 1613 1613
Amounts due to associates BB E A RIFE - 2,573 - - 2,573 2,573
Amounts due to minority shareholders  FEfT D ERRFUR - 35 - - 35 35
Bank borrowings RATMEH 5.3% 266,270 4012 51,896 322,178 316,189
819,616 108,697 125973 1,054286 1,048,297
At 31 March 2008 R-2BN\F=A=t-H
Trade and other creditors EPREMENIE - 744597 140596 124995 1,010,188 1,010,188
Amounts due to related companies JERBEARTE - 33 - - 33 33
Amounts due to associates JERE = A RITIE - 609 - - 609 609
Amounts due to minority shareholders  FEff D ERRZUA - 1,041 - - 1,041 1,041
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries N EE G = 10,515 = = 10,515 10,515
Bank borrowings RITER 6.5% 133,292 67,313 6,294 206,899 203,662
890,087 207,909 131,289 1229285 1,226,048
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 —FENF=H=+—HI F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6¢c. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments; and

e  the fair value of investments held for trading and
available-for-sale investments that are stated at fair
value are determined with reference to bid prices
quoted in active market.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

7. TURNOVER
Turnover represents the total value of contract work certified,
the gross proceeds received and receivable from project
management services in connection with contract work, and
service income from building facilities management rendered by
the Group during the year and is analysed as follows:

6.

$RMITHEE)
6c. AFE

SRAERSMAMEY ATERAT S
REE

e HeaREEKERABZIAFE
TiREREMNEEEN BRI
EHEM G R HERMBUR 5 EHR
BARRRBEREDIEEE + R

s BAFEIKRZFBIEEERERA
HEEZREZRAFE H2EE

BTISHEEE

E=ZRRAEEZEREERERAR
RiFEMBRRRBREBHMAARZE
E{EEEAFERSE °

EEBEFARREC IRENBENLRASE
EptE &% T2 e (I8 B & 1% R m B /&
WELZ FIREE  ARKEBTRIEEEZR
WA - DT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Revenue from construction contracts TREEHWS 4,402,070 4,853,345
Revenue from project and facilities 18 B K& E IR R e

management services 25,146 59,677

4,427,216 4,913,022

90 Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009



BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group’s operations are currently
organised into two operating divisions, namely Management
Contracting and Property Development Management. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary
segment information.

Principal businesses are as follows:

Management - building construction and civil
Contracting engineering

Property —  development management, project
Development management, facilities
Management and asset management

Business segment information for the year ended 31 March

EBREED B

E 3 Sk

REEMS @ AEEZEXBERE D &M ELE
B DRl RAREERMERRERE HF

MARAEEEREEZDHLER 2 EE -

TEXEBWT

EEER

MEHREE

BFEERLIATIE

HREE HBEEE
wiE R EEEE

BHE_TTNF=ZRA=1T—"HUEFEZEKS

2009 is presented below: HERZHAT :
Property
Management  development
contracting management  Eliminations  Consolidated
AEEE YERRER #H =e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT FAT
TURNOVER EER
External sales HIMHE 4,402,070 25,146 = 4,427,216
Inter-segment sales DE 2 RHE - 3,159 (3,159) =
Total FCE 4,402,070 28,305 (3,159) 4,427,216
RESULTS £
Segment results DEEE 89,717 (9,697) 80,020
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ RAFLRERS (54,232)
Other income HlA 31,213
Finance costs RMERA (18,924)
Share of results of associates Al N ES
~ associates engaged in - RBMERE
property investment 2 E AR (1,242)
- others - Hph 1,363 28 1,391
Share of results of jointly BB SR )
controlled entities WrEZE 743 - 743
Profit before tax BREE AR A 38,969
Income tax expense Pt &R (2,960)
Profit for the year FERA 36,009
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

Business segments (continued)

Inter-segment sales are charged at market price or, where no
market price was available, at terms determined and agreed by

both parties.

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled
entities

Corporate assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Additions to property,

plant and equipment

and other intangible assets
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

(Gain) loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

el

S
ok
=

S

i

=
£

P=
S

Bk

el

I

R
MBS

TREE

Hin&#
GBS
RAMETEE

WE - R R
ZHE

HEME - B KRR
2 (egs) B4R
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%o E (H)
7 7B 2 [ 2 35 6 B Ty HR T B W AN Bk (i 8 T g
2EZME)RETEERREZ GFRUKER -

Management
contracting
REEE
HK$'000
TET

1,684,746
26,899

2,730

1,495,182

19,492

9,168

(190)

Property
development
management
MEBRREER

HK$'000
TR

74,313
3,948

4,846

Unallocated
RAE
HK$'000
FHT

37,172

1,312

1,471

Consolidated
=a

HK$'000
FTHT

1,759,059
68,019

2,730
563,508

2,393,316

1,500,028
343,600

1,843,628

20,893
11,464

(200)



BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

Business segments (continued)

Business segment information for the year ended 31 March

2008 is presented below:

8. XBREZD I (&)

755 3 ()
BE-TEN\F=ASt—ALFEZEHS
BAMLFIMT -

Property
Management  development
contracting management  Eliminations  Consolidated
FEEE YEZREE S| =e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THT TET
TURNOVER E
External sales HSMHE 4,853,345 59,677 - 4,913,022
Inter-segment sales DE 2 RHE - 4,209 (4,209) =
Total st 4,853,345 63,886 (4,209) 4,913,022
RESULTS ES: |
Segment results aR=IE 110,999 18,023 129,022
Unallocated corporate expenses R AELRERS (61,900)
Other income Hilg A 39,377
Finance costs BERA (9,405)
Gain on disposal of an associate  tH& — ¥ A F 2 e 3,459 = 3,459
Share of results of associates HAHEREER
— associates engaged in -REMERE
property investment NG 22,391
- others - Hfth 6,638 89 6,727
Share of results of jointly HHh R
controlled entities BiExE 59 - 59
Profit before tax R AR A 129,730
Income tax expense &R (9,747)
Profit for the year FEREAM 119,983
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8.

(continued)

Business segments (continued)
Inter-segment sales are charged at market price or, where no
market price was available, at terms determined and agreed by

both parties.

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled
entities

Corporate assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Additions to property,

plant and equipment

and other intangible asset
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWI - Ht 2 k4

plant and equipment

Management
contracting
AEER
HK$'000
FAET
BE
DEEE 1,981,852
LN 31,299
R
WigEs 1,987
PEEE
BEE
afE
HEEE 1,821,540
TEEE
BEE
Hit &R
REWE
e 5 1
REMBEREE 4,856
Y ER TS
ZIE 8,655
ZEE () 28
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Property
development
management
MEBRREER

HK$'000
TR

70,418
3,800

3,570

1,602

762

3

EBRiED R (&)

Unallocated
RAE
HK$'000
FTHT

35,307

2,042

1,461

24

Consolidated
=a
HK$'000
FTHT

2,052,270
70,406

1,987
508,092

2,632,755

1,825,110
269,699

2,094,809

8,500
10,878
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. XXKKRiMEDZ (&)
(continued)

Geographical segments & 5
The Group'’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau and REEZ EZBURES  RFIRPEARIL
the People’s Republic of China other than Hong Kong and B (F& K&EFAERRIN) ([ ]) -

Macau (the “PRC").

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover B E S E (T miEam, REZ R 2 K
by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/ EEZEXEBENT :
services:
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Hong Kong a5 4,088,188 4,083,524
Macau R 161,290 765,947
PRC H 177,738 63,551
4,427,216 4,913,022
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment LNTRIZEEZMEMES D - o HEER
assets and capital additions, analysed by the geographical area in HEERERILRZ D

which the assets are located:

Additions to property,

Carrying amounts plant, and equipment and
of segment assets other intangible asset
B - BBRRER
2EEEREE Ht B\ EaE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHBT THET THETT
Hong Kong &b 1,097,699 1,302,785 17,315 4,988
Macau JELFT 226,877 438,215 - 707
PRC H 434,483 311,270 2,266 763
1,759,059 2,052,270 19,581 6,458
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HkA
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T
Bank interest income RITH S A 3,348 9,674
Interest income on other debtors At pE WK IE 2 F B URA 16,338 29,437
Interest income on amounts due FEUR R 2B A RIFIEZ
from fellow subsidiaries B A 11,373 =
Imputed interest income on deferred EWCEER B 2 (EE
consideration receivable FBEUA 154 266
31,213 39,377
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MERAK
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Borrowing costs on bank borrowings ARAFAZEER ZIRTT
wholly repayable within five years B ZEERA 19,840 9,820
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BARERENIEER
contracts in progress pd ¢ (916) (415)
18,924 9,405

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds
borrowed specifically for construction contracts.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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11. DIRECTORS’" AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 1. ESEREEME

(a) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2008: (a) ENHENNB(ZZEZTNFE: NE)E
six) directors are as follows: EZEAZHEST ¢
Retirement Share-
Salaries benefit based

and other Discretionary scheme  payment

Name of directors Fees benefits bonus contributions  expenses Total
MR BIREN URGAER
4 wE  EfEN  BERL R ARZER CH

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
ThR AT THT ThR AT THT

2009 “EENF

James Chiu S 750 - - - - 750

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2=k 100 = - - = 100

Lee Hon Chiu (note ) TER (Wit = 125 157 6 = 288

Mok Yat Fan, Edmond (note i E—M (4rzti) - 1,431 312 5 60 1,808

Cheung Lee Ming, Andy (note i) RFIE (Hsii) - 1479 - 8 - 1487

Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley (note iv)  &458 (#fiv) - 1,458 - 7 = 1,465

Lee Chack Fan Y8 500 = - = - 500

lain Ferguson Bruce lain Ferguson Bruce 550 - - - - 550
1,900 4,493 469 26 60 6,948

2008 k59183

James Chiu b=y 750 - - - 109 859

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom SR 100 - - - 109 209

Lee Hon Chiu (note j TER (Writi) = 1,500 9% 75 3 1,702

Mok Yat Fan, Edmond (note i S~ (hzti)) - 2,980 188 12 502 3,682

Lee Chack Fan FEA 500 - - - 109 609

lain Ferguson Bruce lain Ferguson Bruce 550 - - - 109 659
1,900 4,430 282 81 971 71,720

Notes: Hiat -

(i)  Resigned on 1 May 2008. () R-ZBEZENFHA—HEIE-

(i) Resigned on 1 September 2008. iy RZZBEZNFNA—HBHEHIE-

(iiiy  Appointed on 18 July 2008. @iy RZZENFLA+TN\BEEE-

(iv)  Appointed on 1 September 2008. vy RZZEZENFNA—BEZE-

ReEpzemaRAT 200058 9/
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 11.
(continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included two directors (2008: one director) of the
Company, details of whose emoluments as directors are set
out in note 11(a) above. One of the directors was newly
appointed on 18 July 2008.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining three (2008:
four) highest paid individuals, who are employees of the
Group are as follows:

EXREEME (B)

(b) EEME
AREBRAFEAURSHFAEBRE
ARAMEER(—ZTZN\F: —5&
£) REALTZMEFBER LXME
M@ ~ ER—REBZDNHAR_FZE)N
FEATNBEEE-

BT =M (ZTT)\F : W) &= 5
AT (RAEERE) ZEHEMT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBxT FAT

Salaries and other benefits i & E AR 7,074 8,280

Discretionary bonus BEIEAL - 1,526
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEF

contributions AT IR 19 118

Share-based payment expenses ARG BERE R 2 113 651

7,206 10,575

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RS R :

Number of employees

BEAH
2009 2008
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00187T.%2,000,000/8 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017& 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T2 3,500,000/ 7T 1 1
3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of the directors
has waived any emoluments during the year.
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FiEBiE A

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Current tax: IREARRIE

Overseas tax TBINRIE 1,671 8,644

Under(over)-provision in prior years: MAFEADRE (ZET) 4
Hong Kong Profits Tax BANEE 1,608 -
Overseas tax TBHNRIR (319) 1,103
1,289 1,103
2,960 9,747
On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed RZBEZENFEARNAZT AR BBLEERE
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate BoEENFWAKEOEZR - Bt - =ZTZ

from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008:
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
March 2009.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law"”) by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State Council
of the PRC issued Implementation Regulation of the New Law.
The New Law and Implementation Regulation have changed the
tax rate from 33% to 25% for the Group’s subsidiaries from 1
January 2008.

N/ ZEENREHREERL CEMBHEA
17.5%AEE165%  BEEMERIIREE—
ETNF=Z A=+ —HEFERGETERR S
F%16.5% (ZZTZNF 1 17.5%) 51 H °

A HA R R B A 2 BB R s A B ALE
B2 RITRE E -

RZZEZ+FE=ZA+ A hEAREMNEH
(THRE]) AFBREFSESNT=RBMF
BXMEFENFBED RZTTLF
= A7 H - A BB B A8 6 3T B A B K
Bl o FBLEREEHIKOIHAEENE QR Z
MEAZZTZENF—A B RHBRHAER
25% ©
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— ==

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

tax per the consolidated income statement as follows:

. REHRER (&)

REFZRAX B E W R AT Z R BA

A2 SRR

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Profit before tax R 54 A& A 38,969 129,730
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BEEBFESHEE16.5% (ZEZNF :
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) (Note) 17.5%) &t 5 2 B8 (K it) 6,430 22,703
Tax effect of share of results of BHRE N R] RIS AR
associates/jointly controlled entities 2RISR E (147) (5,106)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  FEF{T5 5 A~ AT HR 5 52
for tax purpose 2B 3,292 7,424
Tax effect of income not taxable TER TS 7 H B H AR
for tax purpose 2RISR B (5.994) (9,342)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERI IR L =5
difference not recognised 2B 43 62
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible A L RIARTER
temporary difference previously Z AT HRE B 2= 5
not recognised IR E (910) (121)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised — FIERFEE 2 TS 2 6,242 6,667
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A L RIRERTISEE
previously not recognised 2GR (5,694) (11,789)
Tax effect of different tax rates of RE D RERERE
subsidiaries operating in other KB 2B AR
jurisdictions ZRRABREZ RS2 (1,591) (1,854)
Under-provision in prior years BEFETCEE 1,289 1,103
Tax charge for the year FEZHIEXH 2,960 9,747

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 33.

Note: The applicable tax rate is the tax rate in Hong Kong of 16.5% (2008:

17.5%) where the taxable profit of the Group is substantially

generated.
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (note (b) below)
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other debtors
(note (a) below)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of other
intangible assets
Operating lease rentals (note (c) below)
Release of prepaid land lease payments
Staff costs (note (d) below)
Contract costs recognised as expense
Share of taxation (credit) of associates
(included in share of results of
associates)
Share of taxation of jointly
controlled entities (included in share

of results of jointly controlled entities)

Exchange gain
Gain on changes in fair value of
investments held for trading

13. FERF

F A
Bk GHA)

Gl

ME - EREREZITE
(FX ez b))

5 MEMERIEZ
EERIRERE
(X ()

HEWE B RREZ
(fes) B51R

HERMELEE
Z B8

REMOBE (FXXHEEE)

TR LA BT

BT (FxXH )

HRRAXZIRER

BHBE AR ZIIE(ER)
(BRER#HE
Ll UNCIES )

BL KR ESIHE 2 TR
(BRREHHKR
EHMEEE)

BEE i U

FEEEREZATE
#8)2 Was

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT Tt
3,197 3,238
9,401 8,670
745 234
(200) 49

45 =
23,258 23,148
575 575
123,646 110,179
4,212,227 4,653,859
(1,475) 5,040
116 =
(2,767) (8,946)
(33) -
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13.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(@}

(d)

FENFE=J= 1 —HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued) 13. FEER (&)
Mt -
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Impairment loss recognised (@) BEHERREEENT :
in respect of:
Trade debtors Z 5 W RIE 745 134
Other debtors H i YLK IE - 100
745 234
Depreciation of property, (b) WFE HWEEREZ
plant and equipment: e
Owned assets HE&E 11,464 10,878
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BAEREANIREER
of contracts in progress 2 B (2,063) (2,208)
9,401 8,670
Operating lease rentals (0 #KEHNMES :
in respect of:
Premises bES 23,278 23,311
Plant and machinery K S i 2R 46,523 45,897
69,801 69,208
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BAEREANIREER
of contracts in progress 2 B (46,543) (46,060)
23,258 23,148
Staff costs: (d BIXH:
Directors’ emoluments (note 71) E=Me (Mat11) 6,948 7,720
Other staff costs: Hi BT :
Salaries and other benefits & E At 12 T 383,625 338,868
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEAET S
contributions, net of forfeited HR KRB R K2
contributions of HK$414,000 #£5%414,0007% 7T
(2008: HK$906,000) (ZZZ )\ : 906,000/87T)) 13,625 14,496
Share award payment expenses VARR 19 828 2 1S 3k 2 F X - 675
Share-based payment expenses LARR(D AR 2 X 376 3,726
404,574 365,485
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BAERAHNIREER
of contracts in progress 2 B (280,928) (255,306)
123,646 110,179
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. B2
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHTT
Dividends recognised as distributions ~ RFRERE AR BEZRIEE A
to equity holders of the Company DIRZIRE
during the current year:
Interim dividend paid for ER-ZEZNFHERE — &
2009 - Nil (2008: 3.5 HK (ZZTN\E: ZTTN\F
cents for 2008) per share FRHA R B A% 3.578(l) - 20,843
Final dividend paid for EIR=ZZZ N\FRARKRE
2008 - 5.5 HK cents — 8558 (Z2TN\EF :
(2008: 5.5 HK cents for 2007) R FRARE
per share A5 5784U) 33,072 32,538
33,072 53,381
Dividends proposed: FORAE, -
Final dividend proposed for R —ZTTNFREARE
2009 - 1.5 HK cents —BB1.58W (ZFTN\EF
(2008: 5.5 HK cents for 2008) “ET ) N\FREKE
per share BP%5.5781l) 9,040 33,072

Of the dividends paid during the year, approximately
HK$804,000 (2008: HK$5,733,000) were settled in shares
under the Company’s scrip dividend schemes announced by the

directors of the Company on 18 July 2008 and were credited to

the retained profits of the Company during the year.

The amount of the final dividend proposed for the year ended

31 March 2009, which will be in scrip form with a cash option,
has been calculated by reference to the 602,677,142 issued

shares as at the date of this report.

A BT IR A% B AR 49 5 804,000/8 L ( —EEN
& 5,733,000/ 7T) DIRBEARBESZTNE
ZENFLATNBAMZARRURARSFTE
AR - WBBEERFERBEARARRE
S Al o

HE_TTNF=A=1T—HILFEZEZRZINA

BREERBSEEBEZ RBREHBE LR
ARER B 602,677, 1420% 2 3TN ETE ©
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the equity holders of the
the following data:

Company is based on

15.

BREF

AR AR AR 2 SR AR5 R

THiRBE NI BB E

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT
Profit for the year attributable to RARERFEA
equity holders of the Company EIEEE R &
and earnings for the purposes of STEERELRR
basic and diluted earnings per share EE BRI 2 B 40,218 119,479
Number Number
of shares of shares
RHEE EignE 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary &t S SREAREF 2
shares for the purpose of basic T m AR hntE
earnings per share g 601,516,830 592,827,841
Effect of dilutive potential Eap=p il o ozes
ordinary shares: i
Share options ARt 105,309 3,185,554
Weighted average number of ordinary — stE &R ERF]
shares for the purpose of diluted AR hntE
earnings per share g 601,622,139 596,013,395
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% - MR RE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and Motor computer
machinery vehicles equipment Total
HE KB
G ISE RE REKRE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz T i iz
COST 5%
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZTLFMA—H 59,086 20,629 37,708 117,423
Translation adjustment R - 331 104 435
Additions NE 3,186 1,420 3,894 8,500
Disposals & (964) (1,175) (612) (2,751)
At 31 March 2008 RZZTZEN\F=A=+—H 61,308 21,205 41,094 123,607
Translation adjustment M AR - 87 40 127
Additions R 13,258 3,814 3,421 20,493
Disposals HE (2,694) (2,675) (719) (6,088)
At 31 March 2009 RZZTNF=HA=+—H 71,872 22,431 43,836 138,139
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZTLFMA—H 37,136 14,426 30,671 82,233
Translation adjustment bE AR - 60 33 93
Provided for the year NEERE 5,945 1,736 3,197 10,878
Eliminated on disposals SR ¥ (911) (1,175) (572) (2,658)
At 31 March 2008 R_ZEZENF=A=+—H 42,170 15,047 33,329 90,546
Translation adjustment ME SRR - 22 11 33
Provided for the year RNEEEHE 5,809 2,292 3,363 11,464
Eliminated on disposals o B 12 4 8 (2,687) (2,623) (613) (5,923)
At 31 March 2009 REZBZENF=HA=+—H 45,292 14,738 36,090 96,120
CARRYING VALUES REEfE
At 31 March 2009 R-ZEThNF=HA=+—H 26,580 7,693 7,746 42,019
At 31 March 2008 R_ZEZENF=A=+—H 19,138 6,158 7,765 33,061
The above items of property, plant and equipment are MY - R FRE T AE AR THIFEER
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates per u‘l‘ SHTE
annum:
Plant and machinery 10% M A % M 92 10%
Motor vehicles 20% = 20%
I i 0,
Furniture and ﬂxtures 201/0 RAREE 20%
Computer equipment 33',% T R 331/,9%
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17.

18.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent leasehold
interest in land in Hong Kong held under medium-term leases

and are analysed for reporting purposes as follows:

17. AL B EHIE

AEBZEMN LB EFREBANEE 2+ H
BH L H2REOTmAFTOT

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Non-current assets EREBEE 21,411 21,986
Current assets mENEE 575 575
21,986 22,561
GOODWILL 18. BHE
HK$'000
FAT
COST RAME
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZTLFMA—H 61,646
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 36) U B BT /B8 1 B i 2 Ak (M7 a2 36) 2,323
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=+—8H 63,969
Arising on acquisition of additional interest in AW fE—FE B A R 2 B MER
a subsidiary (Note 36) mE A (H17#36) 5
Adjustments to measurement of consideration for BEFEWERBARZKEE
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years (Note 36) i 1 38 B (H77736) 369
At 31 March 2009 RZTEZNF=A=+—H 64,343
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 April 2007, 31 March 2008 RZZEZTLFMNA—AH - ZTZN\FK
and 2009 —ZEThF=A=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZENF=RA=+—H 64,343
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=+—8H 63,969

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount
of goodwill at 31 March 2009 has been allocated to the
management contracting and property development

management’s cash generating units (“CGUs").
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18.

19.

GOODWILL (continued)

18. & (&)

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated as follows: FMEZERERPENT ¢
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Management contracting EEER 61,651 61,646
Property development management MEEREE 2,692 2,323
64,343 63,969

The recoverable amount of the above CGUs has been
determined based on value in use calculations. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next two
years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years
with a steady growth rate of 5% (2008: 5%). The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 9.4% (2008: 9%). The value
in use calculations is calculated based on the budgeted gross

J,/U:Efﬁ 5 iz AT B B EFE T AR E G A
BEFE AEEMREZRSRERTKE
Efi)\%ﬂ’k%?ﬁh&‘fﬁkjﬁﬁizﬁﬁﬂli@% a2
RBE R E5% (ZTT/\F : 5%) EEHR
AFEZHEERE - BURIRERBR SR 2 &
A1%9.4% (ZZF)\F : 9%) » EAHEE T
REEENFE  MBAEENARZEMLZ B
ERBEREEABHMISER ZHAEMETE

margin, which is determined using the unit’s past performance

and management'’s expectations for the market development.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. HitEPEE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Other intangible assets comprise: H A EE R
Club membership in Hong Kong, BERZEMEE
at cost RAANE 7,000 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, YUER B RO RS
at cost N 565 240
7,565 7,240

During the year, the Group have acquired and disposed other
intangible assets of approximately HK$400,000 (2008: Nil) and

HK$75,000 (2008: Nil) respectively.

FRAEBRERHEEMEREED BN
400,000/ 70 (=2 Z )\ F : ) &75,0007% 7T
(ZZEZ)N\F : &) -

The above intangible assets have indefinite useful lives. The LB EEATHENERASD EFR
directors are of the opinion that the club membership and motor RCEMEERAREZLRBEZEEEL AL
vehicles registration marks worth at least their carrying amounts 2 E S IEREZREE -

by reference to latest market prices.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. BEE N EER
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Cost of unlisted investments B N RI3E E R SR E
in associates 2R 56,936 54,626
Share of post-acquisition reserves, BHUEEE S - 0k
net of dividends received B UER B 11,083 15,780
68,019 70,406
The combined summarised financial information in respect of AREBHMENR ZBEE FTEEREEZS S
the Group’s associates is set out below: NN
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Total assets BEE 325,741 444,357
Total liabilities HEE (156,469) (258,084)
Net assets BESFE 169,272 186,273
Group’s share of net assets of REEE B E AT
associates BEFE 68,019 70,406
Turnover e 502,196 890,943
(Loss) profit for the year FE2 (E8) &5 (11,625) 72,784
Group’s share of profit of associates AEEBEEE R F 2
for the year FEmA 149 29,118
Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2009 AREBZFTEBRERNAN_ZEZENF=A
are set out in note 44(b). =+— B ZFFBERII R M EE44(b) °
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21.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

21. HEEFEEEDS

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHTT

Cost of unlisted investments in HEESIMEIE EMESFRE
jointly controlled entities AN - -

Share of post-acquisition reserves, BHUEER S - 0k

net of dividends received B UER B 2,730 1,987
2,730 1,987

The combined summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s jointly controlled entities is set out below:

AEBEHAEHIREZ BB HMBENRE

FIEAT

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Total current assets MBNE EERE 10,843 11,279

Total current liabilities BB ERRE (5,383) (7,305)

Net assets BEFE 5,460 3,974
Group’s share of net assets of INER B R S

jointly controlled entities BEFE 2,730 1,987

Turnover e - =

Profit for the year FE A 1,486 117
Group’s share of profit of jointly NG B 2k A R e

controlled entities il 743 59

Particulars of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entity at
31 March 2009 are set out in note 44(c).

AEBEETEAFRZGHRER_FTNF=A
=t+— BZFBHEINRKE4(C)

REZEEEERAF 200955

109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R aR MR
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22. AIHEZRE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHTT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, &8 _ETZBAES
at fair value BRRFE 341 343
23. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 23. BUYWUEENRE
During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group disposed of REBE_ZERF=ZA=+—RHILFEAN &K
two subsidiaries, namely Unicon Concrete Products (HK) Limited CSECHERENRERERIEREHZHBA
and Hamker Concrete Products Limited, which were engaged RITEARDR R T2 M (F8) BR AT REM
in the manufacturing and trading of concrete products. The ERTEMBRAA - HERE 19,000,000
consideration for the disposal was HK$19,000,000 which will be B BHEFR-ZEZNF T AKZATNR
settled in cash by the purchaser on or before October 2009. BT o
As part of the consideration for the above disposal of the ER LML ERBARNREZ —2H - BER
subsidiaries, a deferred consideration of HK$15,000,000 is to be 815,000,000 THEBREFBE S ~F+ A
settled in cash by the purchaser under four annual installments =+HRBEFOMNBAMESES - BERER
commencing from 30 October 2006. The fair value of the NA R BBz AT EREFRRR S RIRF
deferred consideration at date of initial recognition is determined K3I%AHEMEE - BEAREDAERARR
based on the estimated future cash flows discounted at 3% per B o-HMEREMNMANM2EEELT :
annum. The amount is unsecured and interest free. The carrying
amounts are analysed for reporting purposes as follows:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Non-current assets EMBENEE - 2,863
Current assets (included in trade and ~ REVEE (BEftABSR
other debtors, deposits and HEMERGRIE -~ 5]
prepayments) RIBIFRIA) 10,949 7,932
10,949 10,795
The amount of deferred consideration receivable which is past RZZBZNF=A=1+—HZEBHRE R
due but not impaired as at 31 March 2009 is approximately 18,2 & WUE T B £ 8 4Y 48,000,000 7T (=
HK$8,000,000 (2008: HK$4,000,000). The directors of the ZZ )\ : 4,000,000/ 7T) © BB 7 B
Company consider the amounts will be recoverable because the MR MARREZRAZ SRR IAIKE o

purchaser is of good financial position.
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

24. B (M) FEFENIRERE

CONTRACT WORKS
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contracts in progress at the REER 2T
balance sheet date: BHITIE
Contract costs incurred to date REEXHZANTIZER 43,939,205 42,553,177
Recognised profits less recognised KRR A R AT R
losses EE 1,421,911 1,274,507
45,361,116 43,827,684
Less: Progress billings W R (45,901,438) (44,430,537)
(540,322) (602,853)
Represented by: Hgg
Amounts due from customers ENE &4
for contract works THEFIB 196,776 201,589
Amounts due to customers for ENEEEH
contract works Ti25K08 (737,098) (804,442)
(540,322) (602,853)
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 2 —FE/NF=H=+—HIF/Z

25. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 25. ESREMEWTIE ST RFBERNRE

112

PREPAYMENTS

The Group's credit terms for its management contracting
business are negotiated at terms determined and agreed with its
trade customers. The average credit periods are ranging from 60
days to 90 days.

Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
are trade debtors, net of allowance for doubtful debts, of
approximately HK$374,869,000 (2008: HK$723,707,000) and
their aged analysis is as follows:

AEERREREN I ERBNEESESR
BRET - FHEEHT60H E90HTE -

B 5 R HEMBYHIE - ST RBEBNRBEFTA
#9374,869,00078 7T (== Z )\ £ : 723,707,000
B IT) 2 SRR R EH 1R 2 B 5 R INGKIA
MmERE ST :

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Within 90 days 90H 333,103 664,994
More than 90 days and within HBHAE0HER

180 days 180HIA 6,051 89

More than 180 days BB 180H 35,715 58,624

374,869 723,707

At 31 March 2009, retentions held by customers for contract
works amounting to approximately HK$421,223,000
(2008: HK$511,560,000) were included in trade and other
debtors, deposits and prepayments, of which approximately
HK$162,844,000 (2008: HK$249,651,000) are expected to
be recovered or settled in more than twelve months from the
balance sheet date.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the
credit quality of the trade customers. The collection is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with these trade
debtors.
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RZZBEZNEF=A=+—0 Bt ABSRH
b BUFRIE - Fl & RTENRBERZANIESR
F#HBZRES#A421,223,0008 L (ZEF
J\£E : 511,560,000/ 7) - H 1 47162,844,000
BT (ZZZ /\F : 249,651,000 7T ) T8 HA #%
REBEBRBAT @A ZRESFHES -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)
Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of individually
impaired trade debtors during the year are as follows:

25. ESRHMEBYWHE  TERANKE
(%)
FR - ERDRESRSRIGREAZ RERES
BERMT :

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

Balance at beginning of the year FHEERR 1,728 3,662
Impairment losses recognised FAEBEARME

during the year [E18 745 134

Amounts written off as uncollectible EEE € e (745) (2,068)

Balance at end of the year FREH 1,728 1,728

The aged analysis of the trade debtors which are past due but

not impaired is as follows:

ERERREE S RUKRIAZ BRie D HT 40
N

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within 90 days 90H A 137 1,833
More than 90 days and within HBiB0BER

180 days 180H A 6,051 89

More than 180 days H#BiE180H 35,715 58,624

41,903 60,546

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been
a significant change in credit quality of the trade debtors and
there is no recent history of default, therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

ARREERR BHRUFEZLEELER
EXREE A ST MBARLE  RitRAZAA
WmE - REBRZEEHRRTHEEMERR -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 25. EEREMEWRRE  FTERFEMNRE

114

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
is an amount of approximately HK$241,756,000 (2008:
HK$222,722,000) which mainly represents advances made
to an independent third party in previous years. The amount
has no fixed repayment terms and carries floating-rate
interest at People’s Bank of China plus 8% per annum which
is approximately of 15.7% (2008: 15.5%) per annum and
is secured by properties interest in the PRC. Fair value of the
relevant properties interest is approximately RMB403,536,000
(2008: RMB422,752,000) according to a valuation report
(prepared using direct comparison method) issued by an
independent property valuer. In the opinion of the directors, the
amount will be recovered in the next twelve months from the

balance sheet date.

The Group's trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
that are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

(#&)

FABSRAEMBBRAKIE FTe REMK
I8 JY 49 241,756,000 T ( — T T )\ F ¢
222,722,0008 7T) 2 XIE - FEZEREBRASF
BRFBIEF=A2FK 2R BEETE
FEBIEPBARRIT TR QM2 IZEFF
EIN8% (BNF F L4 B15.7% (ZTF )\ F ¢
15.5%)) 5T & * WATER B 2 M E RS ERE
o RIBEB W EMAERE 2 BERE (R
REELEEAGRE)  HEAVERER 2 ATE
45 AR ¥403,536,000C (ZFEZENF : AR
#5422,752,0007T) - BERE © ZAEAF AR
HEBRBTZM@ARNKE -

REE G W EE TR AL EEA
By B 5RAMEREE  ReREMNKE
o :

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Renminbi AR 249,961 240,682
MOP Rl 66,761 79,098
usD =TT 779 779
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES 26. BW (F)BAE QX RRIEA

Due from Due to
FEWR B
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FER FHTT
Associates of ITC Corporation EHECHEEETRAT
Limited (“ITC") (MEfFEdEl) 2
/NG| 12,618 1 1,613 -
ITC and its subsidiaries EEAEREMNE AR - - - 33
12,618 1 1,613 33
ITC is a substantial shareholder of PYI. EHERERPYIZEERR -
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable BAFERERR 2ERERERFEE
on demand except amount due from a related company of M FE U — ) B8 A 7] 3K IE 912,110,000/ 7T
approximately HK$12,110,000 (2008: Nil) has credit period of (ZZEZEN\F: E)FEHAOBEBE S &
60 days and is trade in nature with aged analysis as follows: B BRI
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHTT
Within 90 days 90H K 5,790 -
More than 90 days and within BB ER
180 days 180H A 908 -
More than 180 days #BiB180H 5,412 -
12,110 -
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27.

28.

29.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES/ 27. B () BE AT, — B EE %
A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY/FELLOW B/ EARNMELRDBRRARE
SUBSIDIARIES/MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on BRAZIEAEIEKI 28 NEANEREEEE -
demand except amount due from an associate of approximately ME JE U — fE B 2 A |) 3% I8 4956,451,0007% T
HK$56,451,000 (2008: HK$43,595,000) has credit period of 60 (ZZ T )\ : 43,595,000 7T) s B A60H
days and is trade in nature with aged analysis as follow: BEEEBSME - KR HTA T -
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Within 90 days 90H A - 6,849
More than 90 days and within HBiE0EER
180 days 180HIA 2,240 6,962
More than 180 days #1800 H 54,211 29,784
56,451 43,595
Included in the Group’s amounts due from associates and 7N [ e WA B & R B 2RI N FE S R R BB A A
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are balances of approximately RIEBENIEEAEEERINGEEB 2 AR
HK$56,451,000 (2008: HK$43,595,000) and HK$5,669,000 R B2 # 8 5 RII K /56,451,000 7T (=&
(2008: HK$10,754,000) respectively denominated in Renminbi = )\£ : 43,595,000/ 7T) 125,669,000 7T (=
which is not the functional currency of the relevant group T )\ : 10,754,000 7T) °
entities.
LOAN RECEIVABLE 28. BIWE R
The balance represented a loan advanced to an independent AREBRTIBN—ZBNBE=FZ2—F8F T}
third party, which is unsecured, interest bearing at Prime Rate BEER RREBENERF BT EREERE L
and repayable on demand upon 3 banking days prior written EMAAFERITRZBRIRBANEE - FF
notice by the Group. In the opinion of the directors, the amount RE ZFEBER—FANEE - FREKER
will be repaid within one year. The effective interest rate on the ZEBMER/FEES% °
loan receivable was 5% per annum during the year.
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 29. FEEERE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT AT
Equity security listed in Hong Kong RES L ZRAH S 199 =
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30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES
The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group with
maturity within one year of the balance sheet date and are
therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits are
with maturity date of less than three months and carry floating
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.34% (2008: 0.75% to
2.15%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing market
rate ranging from 0% to 1.17% (2008: 0% to 0.86%) per
annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits
and bank balances that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are
set out below:

Renminbi /\Eﬁ%
MOP kil
usD %%71

30.

BEMARTER - EHRTERRRT
R
EERMRTERELSERR TAEE 2 —RIR

TEEMEATRIT2FH  BIBHAREER
ﬁ_—ilﬁ ’ .ﬁﬁ%&@“’ﬁ/uu@jﬁg °

BB ITES &L%ﬁfﬁﬁfﬁéuﬁﬁaﬁyﬁé
=@ A BKESFH001%E0.34% (=52
A\ 0.75%E2.15%) ZFBFZK o RITH
MEIRITHISHEEFHRHO%EINT% (ZEE
N\E  0%%E0.86%) °

NH

AREENEHEEERNEEB I ZERS

Bz BEMRITE - RERITERKLRT
REERINT -

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TET

6,049 2,159

17,135 26,892

30,346 37,633

REZEEEERAF 200955

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RARMIRE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 2 —FE/NF=H=+—HIF/Z

31. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 31.

EXPENSES

Included in trade and other creditors and accrued expenses
are trade creditors of approximately HK$210,261,000 (2008:
HK$464,942,000) and their aged analysis is as follows:

B RHMENRAREBRAX

ESRHEMRENRBEREBFRAIEFAALD
210,261,000/ 7T ( — T & )\ F : 464,942,000
ABIL) 2 BNESFIR - MEKRRSTMOT :

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHER FAT

Within 90 days 90H A 188,072 444,549
More than 90 days and within FBiE0BER

180 days 180H A 10,152 7,362

More than 180 days HBiB180H 12,037 13,031

210,261 464,942

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

At 31 March 2009, retentions held by the Group for contract
works amounting to approximately HK$347,846,000 (2008:
HK$392,298,000) were included in trade and other creditors
and accrued expenses, of which HK$74,077,000 (2008:
HK$124,995,000) are expected to be paid or settled after more
than twelve months from the balance sheet date.

The Group’s trade and other creditors and accrued expenses that

are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

Renminbi ARE
MOP SR

1 1 8 Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009

REEmFHEERR/OR - REBEET
TREREIEBOR - NHERZF RN FIRIZH
§Z1¢°

RZTZNF=A=+—H Bt \BESKH
N FIEREFAXARNEERFEZE
#) TR E € 4 5347,846,0008 T (ZZEZEN
£ 392,298,000/ 7T) © E H174,077,00078 7T
— T T )\ : 124,995,000/ 7t) T8 B iS5 A 45
HHBFBEBT B A& IS -

REBARBEEERERYEEBUINZEER
B 285 REMENRIBRETHRSAT

2009 2008
HK$"000 HK$°000
TRER FTAET
4,279 9,122
19,540 22,761



32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. RITHERK

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Bank loans RITEK
Secured B 109,273 40,758
Unsecured AR 206,916 162,904
316,189 203,662

The bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

TERZEERSRIWT

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHTT
On demand or within one year R AE R — F AT Hf 268,225 197,715
More than one year, but not HEB—F
exceeding two years BT EBBRE 42,993 1,551
More than two years, but not AR M -
exceeding five years BREBBTFE 4,971 4,396
316,189 203,662
Less: Amount due within one year B —FAREAERE B E
shown under current liabilities Z5RIA (268,225) (197,715)
Amount due after one year —F BB Az IR 47,964 5,947

The Group’s bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest from
HIBOR plus 1.0% to 110% of the benchmark lending rate as
announced by the People’s Bank of China from time to time,
ranging from 1.32% to 5.35% (2008: 2.29% to 7.47%) per
annum and fixed-rate interest at 4% per annum.

The secured bank loans are secured by the Group’s bank deposits
of approximately HK$65,299,000 (2008: HK$34,269,000),
property, plant and equipment with carrying value of
approximately HK$17,739,000 (2008: HK$9,325,000) and
charges over the Group’s benefit from certain construction
contracts.

REE 7 RITERZIFEFN R AT BRITR Z
2 MH 0% ZEEFEARBITREAMHZ
BEREEFE10%FE  FEN T1.32%=
5.35% _77/\¢ 2.29%%E7.47%) K& EFE
FREE BA% °

RITERTIARE B 2 $R 1717 5K 465,299,000
;%m_%%@)\i © 34,269,000 7T) ~ BREIA
#917,739,0007% 7T ( ==& & J\ £ : 9,325,000/%
TL) 2 E - MM R EREARNEEE TESE
BREEZF=EER -
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. EERIIE
The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities REAFERNFFEERRZEERELERE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior (BE)BBUNRBEZESWMT :
years:
Accelerated Recognition of
tax Tax contracting
depreciation losses income Total
BHIE
IRTER B HIEEE WA FERR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FAT FHEIT FAIT
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZLFNA—H 5,190 (4,103) (1,087) =
(Credit) charge to consolidated FRRERE W R
income statement for the year (FF A) HB& (124) (150) 274 =
At 31 March 2008 R-ZEN\F=A=+-AH 5,066 (4,253) (813) -
(Credit) charge to consolidated FARGEE MR
income statement for the year (T A) ks (1,861) 1,094 767 -
Effect of change in tax rate fER BT 2 2 (289) 243 46 =
At 31 March 2009 —EThF=A=1t—H 2,916 (2,916) - -
For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, the above RABEEREBERZY  EMREHBEEER

deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.

BEE THEH -

At 31 March 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$431,869,000 (2008: HK$435,180,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$17,669,000 (2008: HK$24,303,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining tax losses has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 March 2009, the Group had deductible temporary
difference in respect of tax depreciation of approximately
HK$1,442,000 (2008: HK$6,697,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such temporary difference as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.
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RZZZAFE=A=+—H' AE@EX
&) 3 i 7% 85 18 49431,869,000/8 o ( —ZZEE N
£ : 435,180,000 7r) A] A3 LA K 85 K 2R fE 3R
it va A ?ﬁt%ﬁ%%aﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁLﬁlﬁﬁFm
17,669,000 7t ( = Z = J\ 4 : 24,303,000/
JT) ° FAFA AR BE TE B AR 2R s F SOR - AR E
WEREBRIEEERERECHIEEE - K8
RIS E 1B 0] T SR B4 &

ZZTNF=A=1T—8  AEEHFBH
%%@1,442,000,%71:(7*2%/\¢ : 6,697,000/
T BAHKREREZRE - BN TAFAREEHIE
St A AT BR S R E RN 2B - R
SEVENZEYREZERRECHIEEE -



34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R

Number of
shares Amount
RHEE MER
HK$'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each: HARMEE0.508 T TR
Authorised: SEIE
At 1 April 2007, 31 March 2008 RZZEZTLFMHA—H - ZFTNF
and 31 March 2009 EAET—BERZZEZANF=A=+—H 1,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 1 April 2007 N-BELFENA—A 589,599,109 294,800
Issue of new shares pursuant to RAR AR BT &
scrip dividend schemes BITHR 4,412,957 2,206
Issue of new shares under share BRI B AR T &
option scheme BATHAR 3,286,000 1,643
At 31 March 2008 H-EENE=A=+—8 597,298,066 298,649
Issue of new shares pursuant to RARARR BT &
scrip dividend schemes BATHIIR 1,365,076 683
Issue of new shares under share RIR B AR T 2
option scheme BITHAR 4,014,000 2,007
At 31 March 2009 RZZTZNF=A=1+—H 602,677,142 301,339

During the year, the following changes in the Company’s share

capital took place:

(@ Pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme which was

announced by the Company on 18 July 2008, the Company
issued 1,365,076 new ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each in
the Company on 17 October 2008 to shareholders who

elected to receive scrip dividend in respect of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008. The scrip price
under the scrip dividend scheme was fixed by reference to

the then market prices.

FA - ARABRAEH A TE

(@ BEARIAR-_ZTEZNFELA+NARD
HZABRREFSE - AABAR=ZTZ)N
F+ A+t H%771,365,076 R TR E E
0.507 7T 2 2N A BT & @ AR T 3% 12 I
BROUNREHEE_TSENF=ZA=+—
HIEFERBARE ZBRE o LIRK B 5T
EITZREEBRDLEERMBERE

E °
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b) The Company issued 4,014,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.50 each in the Company at an exercise price of
HK$0.70 per share (for 500,000 shares), HK$0.85 per share
(for 500,000 shares), HK$0.90 per share (for 1,000,000
shares) and HK$1.00 per share (for 2,014,000 shares),
upon the exercise of share options of the Company.

During last year, the following changes in the Company’s share
capital took place:

(@ Pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes which were
announced by the Company on 20 July 2007 and 14
December 2007, the Company issued 3,925,923 and
487,034 new ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each in the
Company on 15 October 2007 and 4 February 2008
respectively to shareholders who elected to receive scrip
dividends in respect of the final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2007 and the interim dividend for the six months
ended 30 September 2007, respectively. The scrip prices
under the scrip dividend schemes were fixed by reference
to the then market prices.

(b) The Company issued 3,286,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.50 each in the Company at an exercise price of
HK$0.70 per share (for 1,000,000 shares), HK$0.85 per
share (for 1,000,000 shares) and HK$1.00 per share (for
1,286,000 shares), upon the exercise of share options of
the Company.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company during both

years ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects.
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34. R (48)
(b)y ANRBEITERRTBEREMIRITE
B & %0.707% 7t (& &% 500,000/%) - &R
0.8578 7t (3% X% 500,0008%) © & %0.90/5
7t (3% % 1,000,000/%) & &% 1.0078 7T (OF
$2,014,000/%) 7 5l 8 17 & ££4,014,000
MR E{E0.50/8 T 2 AN A R FTE AR

R AAFRAEIATE

(@ BEARAR=-_ZEZTLFLA=+AH
RZZEZLE+ A THWBEAMZNA
BRREEE RABAR_ZZELF T A
+THRAR=ZZEZTNF=-AEAH RIS
3,925,923% & 487,034f% & % M {E0.50
W TT 2 AN A B 3T AR T AR 1D
WREBEBZ_ZEZELtF=A=+—HIt
FERAKE  RBEE-_TZTLFNA
=THLEARNEAREBRE ZIRFT - AR
REFEITZREEBRNDELEERMS
BIEEETE °

(b) ARFRATEARQREREMZITER
& R%0.7078 7t (3% K 1,000,0004%) © & M
0.8578 7T (3% & 1,000,0000%) K &A% 1.00
7 70 (3% &%1,286,0000%) & Bl #1714
3,286,000 % & % H {E0.50/% 7T 2 AN A A
FEER -

FZMERRNRRETZ AN T BRES T @
HARRERKEA RN BEBRMEA -



35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share option scheme of the Company

On 7 September 2005, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to any employees, executives
or directors of the Group or any invested entity and any
consultant, adviser or agent of any member of the Group
or any invested entity, who have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their discretion grant options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Consideration to be
paid on each grant of option is HK$1.00. The directors
of the Company may at their discretion determine the
specific exercise period which should expire in any event
no later than ten years from date of adoption of the
Scheme. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under Listing Rules from
time to time; and (i) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

35. URGDAEBNR RS

(a)

RRFZBRERE
RZZBERAFARLH  NAFRH—
AR B ([ ERTEl]) - LAY
I EHAKREXTAMRERBELE
BZAEBREMEREREZEME
B TRABREZHEMRERE X
AEBMEMKE AR ERMKRERBZ
B FAAIRB(EEBALD Z
HERE LR - AR EREZ AR
HRERTF -

REBREE - NRRRIEEATRBR
EAEERATRHBEE SHE®R
R BRER X M1.008 T2 RE - &
ARAEFARNBEETESR  EEET
AERT  LATERARTFEELRE
PRIEET B ERPNE HRRET+F - TRE
MARBREREUTIRSEMEE : =
DRORE ET R A FFZREBE
Ke(ii) R AR 2 A
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

35. URDAERNR 2R Z (&)

(continued)

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

The maximum number of shares that may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted
by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as at
its adoption date, i.e. 57,669,939 shares of the Company.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the limit may be refreshed
to 10% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. Pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 4 September 2008, the 10%
scheme limit was refreshed to 60,131,206, representing
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
as at the date of such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted to each Eligible Person
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue from time to time unless such grant has been
duly approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which the Eligible Person and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstained from voting.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1%
of the total number of the Company in issue and have an
aggregate value exceeding HK$5 million must be approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting in
advance.
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

35. URDAERNR 2R Z (&)

(a) AATZWEME ()
AERAEE BRI B A
ATBRESBEBEDT -

Details of movements in share options of the Company
granted under the Scheme during the current and prior
years are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the share options

RERRETEERTROZALIARGER

Exercise Outstanding ~ Granted Exercised  Lapsed Outstanding  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise price at during  during  during at during during at
Category Date of grant Vesting date period per share 142007 theyear theyear theyear 3132008  theyear theyear  31.3.2009
RZZBLE RZBENE RZBBNE
mE-A =A=1-A =A=1-A
£5 RHE®  BEAH (oL BRTER WAGE EARE FRTE  FAKN WATE EATE  FAXR AR
HKS
BT
Typel FIE 3.2.2006 3.2.2006 3.2.2006 - 6.9.2015 0.70 1,500,000 - (1,000,000) - 500,000 (500,000) - -
Typell £ 3.2.2006 1.1.2007 1.1.2007 - 6.9.2015 0.85 1,500,000 - (1,000,000) - 500,000 (500,000) - -
Typelll g 3.2.2006 1.1.2008 1.1.2008 - 6.9.2015 1.00 1,500,000 = - (1,000,000) 500,000 (500,000) - -
Type v VB 9.2.2006 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 - 8.2.2009 0.90 5,600,000 = - (2,800,000 2,800,000 (1,000,000) (1,800,000) -
Type V £VE 1372006  13.7.2006  13.7.2006 - 12.7.2008 1.00 1,500,000 - (1,286,000) - 214,000 (214,000) - -
Type VI SV 137.2006  13.7.2007  13.7.2007 - 12.7.2009 1.00 3,000,000 = - (1,500,000 1,500,000 (1,300,000)  (200,000) -
Type VIl ZVIE 1372006 13.7.2008  13.7.2008-12.7.2009 1.00 2,000,000 = - - 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) -
Type VIl VI 30.5.2007 1.7.2007  1.7.2007 - 30.6.2008 1.34 - 1,500,000 = - 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) -
Type IX g 305.2007 1.7.2008  1.7.2008 - 30.6.2009 1.34 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 - (900,000) 600,000
Type X X8 30.5.2007 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 - 8.2.2009 134 - 13,000,000 - (1,700,000) 11,300,000 - (11,300,000) -
Type Xl £ (] 8.6.2007 1.7.2007  1.7.2007 - 30.6.2009 1.36 - 2,000,000 = - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Type XII FEXIE  28.12.2007 162008  1.6.2008-31.5.2009 1.40 - 1,000,000 = - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Type XIl SEXIE - 28.12.2007 1.9.2008  1.9.2008 -31.8.2009 1.40 - 600,000 - - 600,000 - (600,000) -
16,600,000 19,600,000 (3,286,000) (7,000,000) 25,914,000 ~ (4,014,000) (18,300,000) 3,600,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FRBF{E 3,600,000
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme of the Company (continued)
No options were granted or cancelled during the year.

In respect of the 4,014,000 (2008: 3,286,000) share
options exercised during the year, the weighted average
share price at the date of exercise is HK$1.224 (2008:
HK$1.30).

The total estimated fair value of approximately HK$436,000
(2008: HK$4,697,000) with respect to share options
granted to directors and employees of the Group were
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
year.

Share option scheme of PYI

On 27 August 2002, PYI adopted a share option scheme
(the “PYI Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentive
or reward to any employees, executives or officers,
directors of PYI and its subsidiaries or any invested entity
and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of PYI and its subsidiaries or any invested entity,
who have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of PYI and its subsidiaries or any invested
entity (“PY! Eligible Person”). The PYI Scheme will remain in
force for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the PYI Scheme, the directors of PYI may at their
discretion grant options to any PYI Eligible Person to
subscribe for shares in PY| without consideration. The
directors of PYI may at their discretion determine the
specific exercise period which should expire in any event
no later than ten years from date of adoption of the PYI
Scheme. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of PYI and will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription
price as is permissible under the Listing Rules from time to
time; and (i) the nominal value of the shares of PYI.
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(a)

(b)

35. URDAERNR 2R Z (&)

RATF 2R AER 8 ()
F AR AR ) S S AR AR o

BERTTE 24,014,000 (Z BT\ F :
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ZHHIER ©

PYIEE R fE 5t &
RZZZE-_FENA=-++H " PYIHEHE
MRt 2 ([PYIRE AR EET 1)) - LAmI ¥k
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fE B B ZPYIR H M B A ] sk fa] #%
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FRIEA(PYIEER AL REEE K
WM o PYIRERRERTBIRE B2 BB ERF B
WA o

RIBPYIE R AEFT & PYIEE AT BB [
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme of PYI (continued)

35. URDAERNR 2R Z (&)

(b) PYIEMR#ET S (&)

The maximum number of shares that may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
PYI Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted
by PYI must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of PYI, i.e. 103,674,492 shares
of PYI, as at its adoption date. Subject to the approval of
the shareholders of PYI in general meeting, the limit may
be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares of PYI
in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of
PYIl in general meeting. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the
maximum number of shares of PYl which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the PYI Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of PYl must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of shares of PYI in issue from
time to time. Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed at
the annual general meeting of PYIl in 2003, 2004, 2005,
2006 and 2007, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to
10% of the total number of issued shares of PYI as at the
respective dates of such meetings. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at PYI's annual general meeting held
on 5 September 2008, the 10% scheme limit was further
refreshed to 150,839,351, representing 10% of the total
number of issued shares of PYI as at the date of such
meeting.

The maximum number of shares of PYI in respect of which
options may be granted to each PYI Eligible Person under
the PYI Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
PYI (including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of PYI in issue from time to time
unless such grant has been duly approved by shareholders
of PYI in general meeting at which the PYI Eligible Person
and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstained
from voting. Options granted to a substantial shareholder
and/or an independent non-executive director of PYI or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of total
number of shares of PYI in issue and have an aggregate
value exceeding HK$5 million must be approved by the
shareholders of PYI at general meeting in advance.

B ARPYIFE AR 4 51 &) R PYIFT £ 44 (F ] &
ftb BB AR RE ST &I A TR 2 BB AR RE ¥ RE ]
RIERZ 2R BE - & HTIFHBIBPY
RERMWBHERITROLE210% 8
103,674,492% - 0 SPYIRE B 7 &
AEg FHE - ZIRFER] E T RPYIREE
BRERAS LM EEBERITROEBE Y
10% ° EE MY - BEREPYIFEBREET 2
Sk PY I fr] H ) B8 A% 8 5t 21 4% (B M R 7T
A BRERITERA TEITZR
Diag - aHKETEBBPYITREE
TTHRMDEE 230% ° RIBFPYIZZEE=
F ZZTNF - ZTTRF - ZFTRX
FR-IZFTHFREBAFAS LEAY
LBRZR 0% 2 EIREERZE
FHRBTZHEBERBER APYIE TR
MIBEZ10% ° BRIEPYIR =TT \F N
AABERATZREAFAS LRABZE
FRZBR10% 25 EIRBRE—FE
#7/3150,839,351H% - 15PYIRZ & H & 1T
HEABBITIRDBEZ10% °

REM -+ =18 A B - RIEBEPYIEE R ST
=1 2 PYIE ] H fth % AR # 51 81 AT 3% T (E 47
PYIE BB AT ZHERE (BFEETE B
FEoH RORTT R BB AR AE) PR % R Z PYIRR 19
HE HZTEBAPYITEDETKNG
BELZ1% © BRI B IR FEEHE EPY
BERATRABEAL(EER FTA
B MERZEZRREAEG EESPYIRE
ERBUOE - AIRZ R - RMERT=1EA
HAR A MPYISA EZRE &, BT Ik
HITEFIRESAZEMBEALCGE
R EmARAD R HBRER - BRI
BREMP R 2ROEBEAE BITRMHR
2,20.1% & # {8 #8 #55,000,000/% 7T + B
FEVEREBPYIRRERRAS Lt -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme of PYI (continued)
Details of the share options of PYI held by three directors
of the Company under the PYI Scheme which are granted
for the services provided to PYl and movements in such
holdings during the current and prior years are as follows:

35. URDAERNR 2R Z (&)

(b)

PYIEE R REST I (&)

NRAE =% % ERFAPYHR AR mER
BPYIFB AR #E AT 23R W B 2 PYIfE Ak 42
NEERAFREFAZHEEEEFH 2
B

Number of shares of PYI to be

issued upon exercise of the share options

REBREETRES TR ZPYIRGEE

Exercise Outstanding  Granted

price at during
Date of grant ~ Vesting date  Exercise period pershare 142007  the year
RZBBLE
A-H
RiEAH 5RAH L BRRE HATE  FARE
HKS
BT

28.12.2004 28.12.2004  28.12.2004-26.8.2012 1.0628 6,500,000 =
28.12.2004 28.12.2004  28.12.2004 - 26.8.2012 1.2857 6,500,000 =

8.9.2006 8.9.2006 8.9.2006-7.9.2007 248 4,600,000 =
8.9.2006 8.9.2007 8.9.2007 -7.9.2008 248 4,600,000 =
8.9.2006 8.9.2008 8.9.2008 - 7.9.2009 2.1257 4,600,000 =
8.9.2006 8.9.2006 8.9.2006 - 7.9.2007 243 500,000 =
8.9.2006 1.8.2007 1.8.2007 - 31.7.2008 243 1,500,000 =
8.9.2006 (Note #f#1)  1.8.2008 - 31.7.2009 243 1,500,000 =
18.9.2007 18.9.2007 18.9.2007 - 17.9.2008 3.546 - 3,900,000
18.9.2007 18.9.2008 18.9.2008 - 17.9.2009 3.0394 - 3,900,000
18.9.2007 18.9.2009 18.9.2009-17.9.2010 3.03%4 - 3,900,000
3.6.2008 3.6.2008 3.6.2008 - 2.6.2009 17142 = =
3.6.2008 3.6.2008 3.6.2009-2.6.2010 2.1428 = =

Exercised Outstanding  Granted Lapsed  Adjusted Outstanding

during
the year

FRffE

(4,600,000)
(500,000)

at during during during at
3132008  theyear  theyear  theyear  31.3.2009
R=ZBNE R-ZERE
ZB=1-A ZB=1-A
HATE  FARE  FREAM  FR#E HEROR

(Note #7:22)
6,500,000 - - 1083333 7583333
6,500,000 - - 1083333 7,583,333
4,600,000 - (4,600,000) = =
4,600,000 = = 766,667 5,366,667
1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - -
1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - -
3,900,000 - (3,900,000) - -
3,900,000 - - 650,000 4,550,000
3,900,000 - - 650,000 4,550,000
- 4,870,000 (1,166,666) 811,666 4,515,000

(Note fz23)

- 500,000 - 83,333 583,333

30,300,000 11,700,000

(5,100,000) 36,900,000  5370,000 (12,666,666) 5128332 34,731,666

Notes:

1. As the vesting condition was not fulfilled, the share options
were not vested and were lapsed accordingly.

2. The number of share options has been adjusted as a result of
the Warrant Issue.

3. The share options were lapsed automatically one month after
the resignation of director/employee.

The Group has not recognised the share-based payment
expense for the current and prior years in relation to
the share options granted by PYI as the directors of the

Company consider the amount is not significant.

No options were cancelled or exercised during the year.
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

(i)

(ii)

iy
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (i)
In September 2008, the Group increased its interest in D

& C Engineering (H.K.) Limited from 55% to 100% at a

consideration of HK$800,000. Goodwill of HK$5,000 has

been recognised in the consolidated balance sheet.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 11 June 2007, the Group acquired the entire interest in
PY Property Consultants Limited (formerly known as Fexon
Property Consultants Limited), PY (Asia Pacific) Limited
(formerly known as China Land (Asia Pacific) Limited) and
PY Investments (Samoa) Limited (formerly known as Fexon
Investments Limited) (the “Acquirees”), which are engaged
in the provision of property consultancy services, at a net
consideration of HK$1,793,000 (subject to adjustments).
The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. The amount of goodwill arising as a
result of this acquisition is approximately HK$2,323,000.

(i)

36. WIEMBE LR, —REMELQRZEIME

Wi — KB A R 2 BB ME
RZZFEZENFNLA XEBURE
800,000/ Jr & HAFBARK ;% 5t T2 (F8)
AR AR ZERRS55%EE100% © &2
5,000 TLERiRE EEBBERNER °

15t B Fff B8 A =

—ETLFRA+T—H AEEFR
181,793,000 7T (k T # &) KB F1R
HEBRRS 2 REFEERBEMA
RAR(AIBEEHEEEREMERA
A RE(EA)BRAT (BITEER (&
K) B A A KRPY Investments (Samoa)
Limited (RIS B {E&R & AR 2 7)) ([ # 1K
Br 2HEms WBERBEAKES
FIEAR . MKEFEEZEERELN
7$2,323,00078 7T °

2008
HK$'000
FAT
(Note)
(H1at)
Net assets acquired: FrEE N EESE :
Trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments  Z 5 & H A EUGRIE « 574 KR IR FIE 1,290
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RS 1
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B 5 R E b 0B K e (1,628)
Taxation payables JER 1A (193)
(530)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 18) MWEFTEEZEE (H/:718) 2,323
Net consideration FRE 1,793
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of subsidiaries: YXEEHI B A FEA 2B L7 HF5E -
Bank balances and cash acquired Frig NSRITHES RIS 1
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (1,793)
(1,792)

Note: Carrying amount of the Acquirees’ net assets acquired is the
same as its fair value.

Bt - BAZREB T EEFEZREERER

AFEAR °
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 —FENF=H=+—HI F/Z

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(ii) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)
The goodwill on acquisition represents the value obtainable
from synergies with the Group on the economy of scale
on the property development management services of the
Group.

The subsidiaries acquired did not have any significant
impact on the Group's results and cash flows for the year
ended 31 March 2008.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2007,
total group revenue and profit for the prior year would
approximate the amounts disclosed in the consolidated
income statement.

The acquisition was completed at an adjusted consideration
of approximately HK$2,162,000 after taking into the
effect of adjustment on fluctuations of various projects
within 18 months counted from acquisition date. The
additional goodwill of approximately HK$369,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at 31 March
20009.

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
The Group issued additional shares as scrip dividends during
both years as set out in note 34.

Part of the consideration amounting to approximately
HK$19,869,000 for the acquisition of an associate had not been
fully paid as at 31 March 2008 and was included in trade and
other creditors and accrued expenses.
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are separately held in funds under the control of trustees. The
cost charged to the consolidated income statement represents
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are employees who leave the scheme registered
under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by
the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.
At the balance sheet date, there were no material forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming
fully vested and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution
available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at the
rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries participate in retirement benefit
schemes organised by the local government authority in the
PRC. They are required to make certain monthly contributions
based on the local standard basic salaries. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the required contributions under the schemes.

38.

RIRERGEE

AEERAEREEREEREHFERAREF
A8 RERTEIZEEMIEATE ZZHA
EUFA  NESRERBLHZERRTSE
Bz St 2 RAME LIS TESZ

HK -

fid /B B P = A AN BRI 2 B s AT R
HZBERRAEEPI T ER 258 AEH
FER SR RIHRE W R 2 SRR » NAEE
B BMEREERKRERNAEEHR DR
28 AT GLBES B A A LANER R R ERE A
SERMNERZEAD RRHR -

H-ZZETF+-A—RB "EEMARS
MREEFE ([BEETE]) - BESFHEE
REBEBRHERATREEFBEOIERHEREERE
EREL RESHECEERURAREZ
BE BHBEYIEAZGZESRHE o RIEF
EZRA - BEREEHAESEBLARANFTHZ
XA AR - AEEERREDFE 2 E
BEEAREFEMERIEE 2HR - RiFwE
EFH 8 BT EH B WK AT BEHRA
SEBREMNERK-

e iE & &t 81 1F 2 R RAE I IR B 47
BlERME - HERARBERERAETHA
ZH R AEE B2 MK

AEBZHEHERF2EE B E BT #
BEEZRKENGE - FFEAREWIRELR
AEME A ETHR - AEBERAREF
EMELRERN  BIEETRABHNEZE
o
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39.

40.

41.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EAREKIE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT
Capital expenditure in respect of the EHESEENS S
acquisition of property, plant and W TSk MR -
equipment contracted for but not aEYEDE
provided in the consolidated IS L
financial statements B 1,350 -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. HAREE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of FLIRF—RHE < AR
banking facilities granted to RITEEMBITHEE
an associate R 11,835 10,481

At the initial date of providing this guarantee, the directors
consider that the fair value of the financial guarantee is
insignificant.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

41.

REBHRZERZNBEEHN  EER /P BER
ZRFERTRE -

REHENER

REER  AREETTREZEHEERYE
RETBOTIE WA ARR SRR S FIEASE - It
FAEZ ST

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

T T

Within one year —&FR 18,937 24,894
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFAF(EEMEBELNA) 13,609 30,913
32,546 55,807

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, for terms
ranging from two to five years.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a)

. BEALIRZRER

The Group entered into the following transactions with its (@ FAR AEEHEEBEEATFIZINATR

related parties during the year:

Class of related party
BEALZER

Associates of the Group
RNEE B S AT

Jointly controlled entities
of the Group
ANE B 2 H A

Subsidiaries of PYI
PYLZ B~

Subsidiaries of ITC
BEAEZHBAR

Associates of ITC
BREREZEE AR

5

Nature of transactions

REMEE

Project management fee charged by the Group

AREBEWHIAR B E

Rentals and related building management fee
charged to the Group

REEXNEE AR XERE

Building manager remuneration charged by the Group

REBYPEYEEE NS

Consultancy fee and carpark rental charged by the Group

AEBWEGEAERFESES

Subcontracting fees charged to the Group
TEEXNHIBE

Service fees charged by the Group

NE B U IR B

Project and facilities management fees charged
by the Group

REEWHIE B KR E IR B

Air-conditioning expenses charged by the Group

REEWIRZERE

Construction works charged by the Group

REBRBMEHNTIEE

Interest charged by the Group

255 B BRI 2

Carpark rental charged by the Group
REFWREESES
Motor vehicle rental charged to the Group

AREEXER

Service fees charged by the Group

REBUWER RS B

Air-conditioning expenses charged by the Group

NGB WERZE R B

Services fees charged to the Group

REBE LR E

Construction works charged by the Group

REERHRAEHNTIRE

Interest charged by the Group

ZRER [ UER A 2

Carpark rental and security guard service
charged by the Group

REBEWHIFEISE S RIR T RS

2009
HK$'000
FERT

11,867

15

4,251

108,214

11,373

174

187

884

12,110

523

207

2008
HK$'000
TAT

28,874

4,448

243

401

3,861

17

1,689

61

32

190

94

a4

583

58

REZEEEERAF 200955

133



134

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R aR M
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)
(b) The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

42,

BEALRZ K& (HE)

(b) FREZFLHMEEEEZE ZFHHMAT :

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Short-term employee benefits i ESET 7,483 6,662
Post-employment benefits RRAET 30 87
Share-based payment expenses VAR BEM 2 X 60 971
7,573 7,720

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Details of the balances with related companies, fellow

subsidiaries, associates and a jointly controlled entity at the
balance sheet date are set out in notes 26 and 27 respectively.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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NEEREBERNR  REMEBEAR - BEAQ
N — R FI#E 2 X B ERFBEHTIR
W26 K227 °

ol



43. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

43. KRRz EEREX

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

TOTAL ASSETS nEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR E 262,881 262,445
Other debtors HAb eI GRIE 52,486 =
Amount due from a subsidiary JiE U — FE1Ff B A R FKIE 211,353 86,645
Short term bank deposits RHISRITIE R - 165,454
Bank balances IRITHERR 708 41
527,428 514,585

TOTAL LIABILITIES mem
Other creditors and accrued expenses  E-f & {7k 78 M e 5t > 1,504 1,504
Bank borrowings RITIER 38,000 =
39,504 1,504
NET ASSETS EEFE 487,924 513,081

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR G

Share capital A&7 301,339 298,649
Reserves (Note) wE (ML) 186,585 214,432
487,924 513,081
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

43. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (continued) 43. XRRZEERBR (&)
Note: Movement of reserves of the Company during the current and HieF - ARBRAFERAFZFEHEZSHOT -
prior years are as follows:

Share Capital

Share Special option redemption  Retained
premium reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Bx

kil HARE BRERE BRERE KREEN aat
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT  TERr TAT  Ter AT TExn

At 1 April 2007 RZZZLFMNA—H 273,728 (150,000) 981 255 48176 173,140
Profit for the year FEH A - - - - 85,256 85,256
Recognition of equity-settled RUARRD AR 2 (T5%

share-based payment expenses BnktE - - 4,697 - - 4,697
Issue of shares under RIBELARA S5 2

scrip dividend scheme BT (2,206) - - - - (2,206)
Issue of shares upon exercise of RTfeERER

share options IR 1,591 - (398) - = 1,193
Credit arising on scrip dividends PR B A 2 R - - - - 5,733 5,733
Dividend declared and paid BEREZTRE - - - - (53,381)  (53,381)
At 31 March 2008 R=ZEN\F=A=1—H 273,113 (150,000) 5,280 255 85,784 214,432
Profit for the year EE A - - - - 2,986 2,986
Recognition of equity-settled RUARRMD AR 2 (T5%

share-based payment expenses BniE - - 436 - - 436
Issue of shares under BEARR S E

scrip dividend scheme BT (683) - - - = (683)
Issue of shares upon exercise of RTERREREm

share options 1R 2,266 - (584) - - 1,682
Effect of share options lapsed BRuERE, 22 - - (4,291) - 4,291 =
Credit arising on scrip dividends PARRR S E £ 2 Bk - - - - 804 804
Dividend declared and paid BEREITEE - - - - (33,072 (33,072
At 31 March 2009 RZZZNE=R=1+—H 274,696  (150,000) 841 255 60,793 186,585
The special reserve of the Company represents the difference AN DAl 2 B B B $5Paul Y. Management
between the aggregate of the net asset value of, and Contracting® Z= /& H & |8 = B & 2 M
shareholder’s loan to, Paul Y. Management Contracting 250,000,000/ 7T - 2 4 A U4 EEPaul V.
amounting to HK$250,000,000 and the issue value of the shares Management Contractingft.f& < & 17 17 E &
of HK$400,000,000 as consideration for the acquisition of 400,000,000/ 7T 2 Z= 8 ©

Paul Y. Management Contracting in prior year.

1 36 Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009



44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
Particulars of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2009 are as follows:

(a)

Name of subsidiary

il PNGEE

China Earth Limited
ERARAT

Corless Limited

Paul Y. Building Materials
Company Limited

Paul Y. — Concentric
Joint Venture

Paul Y. — CREC(HK)
Joint Venture

Place of

incorporation/

registration/
operation

B,/
BB

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin
Islands

RERLHE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

ERTR
grRE
HMER

HK$1
ordinary share
1T

il

us$2

ordinary shares
25T

AR

HK$2
ordinary shares
28T

(note (i) below)
(FXHEG)

(note (i) below)
(FXHTz2G)

44,

IEMBAT BE AR RARZHH

BER

(@ ARRAEEWBARAR-FTTAFZA
=t—BZHBEOT

Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital

held by the attributable
Company/ to the
subsidiaries Group Principal activities
PN
)= NG
i) FEBEN
BRTRA BRTERS
A& AfER
ZBEDH ZEAL FEEE
% %
100 100 Investment holding
RERR
100 100 Investment holding
REER
100 100 Trading and
installation of
building materials
RSN EE 5 Rk
51 51 Civil engineering
TARIR
60 60 Civil engineering

TATRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 {2 = EZENF=H="1—HIF/E

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

(continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/
registration/

Name of subsidiary operation
B3GR
) NGRS EEME
Paul Y. (E & M) Hong Kong
Contractors Limited Bk
RERETRERAA
Paul Y. Builders Group Hong Kong

Limited BB
REREEEERAR]

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

BRTR
grRE
HEMER

HK$20,000,000
ordinary shares
20,000,000/ 7T
AR

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B

HK$1,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(note (i) below)
1,000,000/ 7T
ERERERITR
(X M7z i)

. EEWBLTE  BEQTRARZEGH

BES ()

(@ ARAEFEWMBARNR-_ZTZNF=H
=t—BZFBWET : (8

Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital

held by the attributable
Company/ to the
subsidiaries Group Principal activities

AT,/

MEAR

SR FEEEN

BRTRE BRIRES
A E A sEfEAR
ZEDH ZEA  EEEK
% %

99.9998 99.9998  Provision of electrical,
mechanical and
building services

RE B SIRE RS
100 100 Investment holding

REER



44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

(continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Name of subsidiary operation
i Ve

ME QR A EEME

Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong

REREAR AT BB

Paul Y. Construction & Hong Kong
Engineering Co. Limited B

RERETRERAA

Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong

RERBAEBR AT BB

Paul Y. General Contractors Hong Kong
Limited &S

RERELERRAR

Paul Y. Interior Contractors Hong Kong
Limited Bk

RERHTIEARAF

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

BRTR
grRE
HEMER

HK$102,000,000
ordinary shares
102,000,000/ 7T
AR

HK$42,000,000
ordinary shares
42,000,000/87C

HK$1
ordinary share
BT

HK$200,000,000
ordinary shares
200,000,000/ 7T
Bt

HK$2

ordinary shares
28T

AR

44,

FEWBOR - BE QT K HE 26
BES ()

(@ ARAEFEWMBARNR-_ZTZNF=H
=t—BZFBWET : (8

Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital

held by the attributable
Company/ to the
subsidiaries Group Principal activities
AT,/
MEAR
FrsE FEEEN
BRTRE BRIRES
A& sEfEAR
ZBEDH ZBEA  EEEK
% %
100 100 Building construction
BT
100 100 Building construction
and specialist works
BFEEREIATE
100 100 Provision of finance
RERE
100 100 Civil engineering
and building
construction
TARTRRRIEFEE
100 100 Interior decoration
works
EREETE
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 4. FEMBLAT BE QAT R LR EHIH
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY BEE (E)
(continued)
(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at @ ARrFEZENBAAIR-_ZEZEAF=H

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued) =+—HZHEBOT : (&)

140

Percentage of issued

Issued and share capital/
Place of fully paid registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the attributable
registration/ registered Company/ to the
Name of subsidiary operation capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
AT,/
MEAR
SR FEEEN
BETR BRTRE BRIRES
B3/ HERE A E A sEfEAR
) NGRS EEME AEfEA A=Y ZEAL  ETEEE
% %
Paul Y. Management British Virgin US$2,000 100 100 Investment holding
Contracting Group Limited Islands ordinary shares REER
REERTREE RBRAES 2,000%7T
BRARR AR
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Hire of motor
RERBASER AR BB ordinary shares vehicles and plant
28T and machinery
EiEk I R R
HeE
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Civil engineering,
Company, Limited B ordinary shares building
REREGR AT 28T construction
il and investment
holding
HK$50,000,000 - - TATRE  #F
non-voting BEREEER

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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(note (iii) below)
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued)

(a)

Name of subsidiary

il NGRS

Paul Y. Construction
(China) Limited
RERE (PER)BRAR

Paul Y. Foundation
Holdings Limited

Paul Y. Foundation
Limited
REMERR AT

Paul Y. Foundation (Macau)
Limited
REWE OB BRAR

Paul Y. Management
Limited
REEEERAF

Issued and

Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration/ registered
operation capital
ERTR

B3/ HERE
EEM I AEfE A
PRC RMB 120,000,000
H registered capital
AR 120,000,0007T

British Virgin Us$1
Islands ordinary share
ERELHS EE
il

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
B ordinary shares
10,000,000/ 7T

AR

Macau MOP25,000
JBFT registered capital
JRF9#25,0007T

Hong Kong HK$2
&S ordinary shares
28T

44,

FTEMBRTE - BE QAT RILEZEFHE
BEH(HE)
(@ ARAFFEWNBRAINR=-_ZZTNE=A
=t—BZFBWT : (8
Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital
held by the attributable
Company/ to the
subsidiaries Group Principal activities
PN
MEAR
iEse] FEBEN
BRTRE BRIRES
HEfEAR EfEAR
ZBEDH ZEA  EEXEK
% %
100 100 Civil engineering and
building construction
TARTRRIETFRE
100 100 Investment holding
REZR
100 100 Civil engineering and
foundation works
TARTRERMETE
100 100 Civil engineering and
foundation works
TARIBRMETR
100 100 Management and
secretarial services
EIE RME RS
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

(continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/
registration/

Name of subsidiary operation
R,/ &

o) PR EEM I

Paul Y. Project Hong Kong

Management International &8
Limited
REBRTRERERAA

Paul Y. Facilities Hong Kong
Management Co. Limited ~ &/&
REREERFRAA

Unistress Concrete Products Hong Kong
(H.K.) Limited BB
R T B
(BE)BRAA

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

BRTR
BrRE
HMER

HK$2

ordinary shares
28T
EE

HK$2

ordinary shares
28T
EE

HK$2
ordinary shares
28T

HK$10,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(note (ii) below)
10,000/ 7T
EIRRERER
(FXHi#2i)

44,

FEWBOR - BE QT K HE 26
BES ()

(@) AABETEMBATR _ZTZTNFE=A
=+—HZHFBOT : (&)

Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital

held by the attributable

Company/ to the

subsidiaries Group Principal activities
PN
MEARE

iEse] FEBEN

BRTRE BRIRES
HfEAR EfEAR
ZBEDH ZEA  EEXEK

% %

100 100 Project management
services and
investment holding

HEHEBERRE R
KREER

100 100 Facilities management

services
e 1R AR A

100 100 Manufacturing and
trading of
concrete products
and property
investment

100 100 BRE L Em
MERE



44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

(continued)
(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are private limited

companies except Paul Y. — Concentric Joint Venture and

Paul Y. — CREC(HK) Joint Venture which are unincorporated

business.

Notes:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

There is no issued share capital/registered capital for the joint
ventures as they are unincorporated business.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not
entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends for any
financial year and are, on winding up or otherwise, only
entitled out of the surplus assets of the company to a return
of the capital after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of
the company.

The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are not
entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless the
net profits of the company available for dividend exceed
HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they should be entitled
to a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per
annum for any financial year and are, on winding up, only
entitled out of the surplus assets of the company to a return
of the capital after a total sum of HK$10,000,000,000 has
been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company.

44. TEME AR - BE QTR G ZHHE
BEN A
(@ ARAETEMELARAR-FTTAFZA

=t—BZFBWET : (8

LB B AR ALABRAR
MEPaul Y. — Concentric Joint Venture &
Paul Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture & 3E7A A

2

Wit -

(0

(ii)

(iii)

o

mRaERETIIFEABR
TR AR o

P ED

N EEREREERBEAEZERR -
MEEERTANVBREEZRE AR
EREZARBREREELMBR T
ik %2 27100,000,000,000,000/ 7T F % 2
AIEERFEAEACHBRBREEZRBR
T BREEAR -

HEERERELERFE AEERSE -
MERERRE - BRIEZAAEIR
&, 41 I #2 #1100,000,000,0007% JT © £
ERT  REAEREMAKEFE
Bk —BFEE A% BTEIFZER
8 BRAREZARERIDIKEALE
10,000,000,000% 7T F:2 A Al & BRI A
AEEBERBEEZBRT  BREA
z]go
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 4. FEMBLAT > BE QAT R LR EHIH
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY BEE (E)
(continued)
(b) Particulars of the Company’s principal associates at (b) AR EEHLS AN _ZEZENF=H

31 March 2009 are as follows: =+—HZHFBHT:

Issued and Percentage of
fully paid issued share
Place of share capital/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
BRITRHR FEBEGEERT
BENTEH BRI/ At B BA/ZER RE/BMEAZAAL FTEEK
%
CSCEC - Paul Y. Construction PRC US$10,000,000 31.33 Civil engineering
Company Limited H registered capital and building
HRREREFREEAA (note (i) below) construction
10,000,000 7T IARTRREFRE
&R
(FXHIzE)
Zhong Yu — Paul Y. Project PRC US$500,000 40 Project management
Management Company Limited H registered capital and consultancy
FRPFREIREREEBRAA (note (i) below) services
500,000% 7T IR BB MR AR
S E AR
(FXHIzE))
WLEEEEGR AR PRC RMB30,000,000 50 Investment holding
H registered capital REER
(note (i) below)
AR #30,000,0007C
A E AR
(FXH1)
N EBREREER A A PRC RMB 10,000,000 50 Property holding
i registered capital ESTRYES
AK%10,000,0007C
&R

All of the above associates are held by the Company

indirectly.

Notes:

(i) The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company.

(ii) As at 31 March 2009, the registered capital of #/TEH &
AR 2A7F is paid up to RMB14,084,680.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009
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iy WRARDRPISESLRT -

(i)  F2009%F3A31H @ HIIEMBEEER
AR BB AR 14,084,6807T 2 i flR



44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)

(0)

Particulars of the Company’s principal jointly controlled
entity at 31 March 2009 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Name of jointly controlled entity  registration

HEZEHBBEEE BR3L AT it B
Paul Y. — Penta-Ocean Joint Hong Kong
Venture B8

Note: There is no issued share capital/registered capital of for the
joint ventures as they are unincorporated business.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and a
jointly controlled entity of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

4. TEMBEAT  BEQXTRAREHH

BEN A
© AAREBHALHBBER -_TENAF

Issued and
fully paid
share capital
BRITR
HERAE

(note below)
(TxXHizZ)

=RA=T—HZFBWOT :

Percentage of
issued share
capital attributable

to the Group Principal activities

FEEEMLE
BITRAZEDL TEXK
%
50 Civil engineering
TARTHE

i MRABECETIAARNE  KALEED
BITRA AR -

NEBXRFIRESTRAREIEREAE
BFEEXENAXNTEBRLNFEE
ZARRNBIMBAR  BERR R —EH’
FIEGIHE - EF2R A FIHMMER
B BE AR RHARZEGISE SRS
SRIEILK °

L P B R B B SRR AN AR ] B
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Financial Summary

B TERER

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-HLHE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T FHET FHBT FBT
RESULTS ESE
Turnover ] 3,247,683 3,109,876 4,359,329 4,913,022 4,427,216
Profit before tax R A% A& A 79,559 104,277 109,435 129,730 38,969
Income tax expense FriSHi 2 A (1,836) (3,196) (8,401) (9,747) (2,960)
Profit for the year FEm A 77,723 101,081 101,034 119,983 36,009
Attributable to: AT AL -
Equity holders of the Company KRR ZE=FBA 80,006 100,902 112,621 119,479 40,218
Minority interests DHIRR R (2,283) 179 (11,587) 504 (4,209)
77,723 101,081 101,034 119,983 36,009
As at 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T FHET FHBT FBT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BB E 1,676,923 1,937,190 2,561,371 2,632,755 2,393,316
Total liabilities BaefE (1,353,457) (1,556,946) (2,106,435) (2,094,809) (1,843,628)
Equity Em 323,466 380,244 454,936 537,946 549,688
Attributable to: AT AL :
Equity holders of the Company KRR ZERFEA 316,101 369,900 442,116 523,763 536,815
Minority interests DEIR R 7,365 10,344 12,820 14,183 12,873
323,466 380,244 454,936 537,946 549,688

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Annual Report 2009



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James Chiu, OBE, JP Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Deputy Chairman (Non-Executive Director)

Wong Kam Cheong, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
Stanley

Cheung Lee Ming, Andy Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer
Lee Chack Fan, SBS, /P Independent Non-Executive Director
lain Ferguson Bruce Independent Non-Executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE
James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lee Chack Fan, SBS, JP
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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COMPANY SECRETARY
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SOLICITORS
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Corporate Information

ARER

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

BNP Paribas

DBS Bank (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, Beijing Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Wing Hang Bank, Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
31/F, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2831 8338

Fax: +852 2833 1030

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Standard Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

WEBSITE
WWW.pyengineering.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577
Reuters 0577.HK
Bloomberg 577:HK
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